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Flowers and desert plants consist of
about 2,282 species in Saudi Arabia.
According to recent estimates, there
exists 97 species (4.25%) of trees, 565
species of shrubs (24.73%) and about
1,620 species of herbs (71.02%).

Description:	Commonly known as the Siberian lily or the lavender mountain
lily, flower colour ranges from light blue to dark violet. It includes
three or four types with the most famous type Siberian Lily.

Siberian Lily
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Arfaj

Description:	Arfaj is a plant found in rigid and sandy desserts. It is a very
bushy shrub ranging from 25 to 90 centimetres in height. In
the summer, when the earth has dried out, the leaves fall and
the branches become naked and lignified with living fibres. In
late spring it starts to blossom somewhere between April and
May. The Arfaj produces leaves quickly after rainfall in cold
temperatures. In months, the branches and newly formed leaves
become vigorous, and the brownish yellow flower become.

Chairman’s Statement
Dear Shareholders,
It gives me great pleasure to present,
on behalf of the Board of Directors, the
Company’s 29th Annual Report. It includes
the Board of Directors’ Report, auditors’
report, and financial statements and their
notes for the year ending 31 December 2015.
I would like, first of all, to express
my happiness for the remarkable
achievements and results realized by
Tawuniya during 2015 through which the
Company confirmed retaining its position
as the leader of the Saudi insurance
market despite the fierce competition
with the other players in the market and
the challenges faced by the national
economy affected by the sharp fall in oil
prices and the fluctuation of the stock
market’s performance and its obvious
impact on investment returns.

I would like
to express
my great
pleasure for
the remarkable
achievements
and results
realized by
Tawuniya during
2015.

In these circumstances, the Company has
continued its outstanding performance
and realized a growth in net income before
Zakat at 7%, rising from SR 602 million in
2014 to SR 642 million in 2015, forming
the biggest net profit realized since the
establishment of the Company 30 years
ago. The earnings per share amounted to
SR 5.98 equivalent to almost 60% of the
nominal share value.
Continuing the outstanding results
realized by the Company, the Board of
Directors has approved the financial
statements for the year 2015, and they
reveal the increase in total assets to SR
11.6 billion compared to SR 9.9 billion in
2014 at a growth rate of 17%. In addition,
the insurance portfolio of the Company
exceeded seven billion Riyals as the gross
written premiums reached SR 7.5 billion,
realizing a growth rate of 22% compared
to the previous year.
The investment and asset management
policy succeeded in overcoming the
challenges of the stock and bond markets.
The shareholders’ investments realized
a net income of SR 163 million, and the
policyholders’ investments realized a net
income of SR 71 million.
The Company has continued asserting its
commitment towards its policyholders
and paid claims of SR 4.1 billion in 2015
compared to SR 3.7 billion in 2014 showing

an increase of 13%, which strengthens the
customers’ confidence in the Company
and consolidates its reputation as a
committed Company.
In order to realize these achievements
and results, the Company management
has taken several important decisions
and implemented a lot of initiatives and
programs that helped it to overcome the
challenges and retain its position as the
leading insurers in the market.
The company developed a road map
to comply with the new regulations
issued by the Saudi Arabian Monetary
Agency and the Companies Law. It also
developed the e-commerce infrastructure
and implemented information systems
allowing the addition of extra services
and benefits to support the customer
services. The Company designed online
sales system for the new health insurance
program for visitors of Saudi Arabia
in coordination with the Council of
Cooperative Health Insurance (CCHI) and
the Ministry of Foreign Affairs (MOFA). In
addition, several projects were planned
and implemented to promote the concept
of “customer centricity” that improves the
customer experience and enhances the
services provided to them.
In 2015, Standard & Poor’s (S&P) assigned
Tawuniya an ‘A’ rating for the tenth
consecutive year, which is considered the
highest rating scored by a Saudi insurance
company. In addition, Tawuniya has been
selected amongst the list of the “top 100
Saudi companies”. The Company also
obtained an award as one of top brands in
Saudi Arabia.
In 2015, Tawuniya continued its efforts
to develop its operations on all levels
and managed the current and future risks
efficiently and effectively. It enhanced the
underwriting and marketing performance
of the three strategic business units,
i.e. Medical, Motor and Property &
Casualty, which mainly targeted increase
performance, identifying risks, increase
profitability and adjusting the prices with
the actuarial pricing system after raising
the analytical capabilities as well as a
review of anti-fraud strategy.
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Tawuniay also continued its efforts for the implementation
of Saudization plan and raised its rate to 79%, carried out 120
training programs at in-house and external to develop the skills of
the staff. The Company was able to expand sales, raised the level
of services provided to customers and attracted a lot of insurance
contracts with key clients and encouraged the renewal of such
contracts at high rates.
In line with social responsibility activities, Tawuniya has continued
its support of the Prince Fahad Bin Salman Charity Association for
Renal Failure Patients Care “Kelana”, which started in 2006. Also
the Company has participated in the Breast Cancer Awareness
Events during October 2015, as well as the implementation of a
monthly program to provide medical tips and awareness materials
on some chronic diseases.
Tawuniya is working on taking advantage of the opportunities
available in the Saudi insurance market by providing more efficient
and effective insurance offerings, review of insurance prices in line
with the actuarial pricing assessment and the improvement of
sales processes and distribution channels.

The Company is also planning to initiatives to support business
growth and market penetration, in addition to the effective
management of the information systems applications that help
in improving reports accuracy and the provision of advanced
analytics. It will also continue activating the new initiatives to
support the concept of “customer centricity”.
In conclusion, I would like to express my sincere gratitude and
appreciation to the management of the Company and all its
employees on this achievement realized during the year 2015, and
look forward to having more achievements in the coming years. I
also extend my sincere appreciation to all shareholders and to our
valued customers for their valuable trust.

Soliman Saad Al-Humayyd
Chairman

Description:	Milkweed is a species of flowering plant. It is a tree 10–15 feet
high, with a grayish cork-like bark called osher by the Arabs. It
is filled chiefly with air, which gives it the round form. In the
center a small slender pod runs through it which contains a small
quantity of fine silk. When pressed or struck, it bursts releasing a
sticky-milky substance. temperatures. In months, the branches
and newly formed leaves become vigorous, and the brownish
yellow flower become.

Milkweed

The Board of Directors (BOD)

H.E. Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
Chairman

Mr. Waleed A. Al-Eisa
Vice - Chairman

Mr. Ali A. Al-Subaihin
Director

Mr. Saad A. Al-Marzoqi
Director

Mr. Abdulaziz I. Al-Nowaiser
Director
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Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki
Director

Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez
Director

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Alzaid
Director

Mr. Homoud A. Altwaigery
Director

Description:	Most types of this family are found at sea level and extend up
to 5,000 feet above sea level. All other types in this family are
mostly found in the southern part of the city of Medina. There
are three types of genus that bloom at night and the flowering
process takes up to two hours.

Coneflower

The 2015 Board of
Directors’ Report
The Board of Directors (BOD) of the
Company for Cooperative Insurance
(Tawuniya) has the pleasure of presenting
our shareholders with the 29th Annual
Report, comprising of the company’s
most significant regulatory-based plans,
decisions, operational activities, financial
results and disclosures. The audited financial
statements and their notes for the fiscal
year ending December 31, 2015 accompany
the report.

Despite the
challenges
faced by the
Kingdom’s
economy,
Tawuniya
will continue
the efforts to
maintain its
outstanding
rating in 2016.

••

Design and adoption of the health
insurance program for visitors of
Saudi Arabia and completing the
preparations required for the activation
of this new compulsory insurance.

2. Distinctive achievements and ratings in
2015:
••

Realization of record profits amounting
to SR 642 million before zakat allocation.

••

Standard & Poor’s (S&P) has assigned
Tawuniya an ‘A’ rating for the tenth
consecutive year, which is considered
the highest rating scored by a Saudi
insurance company in 2015.

1.

Significant Plans and Decisions

••

Approval of the 2016 business plan
and budget.

••

Approval of the annual strategy of the
Fraud and Risk Management..

••

••

Adoption of a consulting company
to study the company’s strategy and
future business plans.

Selection of Tawuniya amongst the list
of the “top 100 Saudi companies”.

••

Tawuniya attained an award as one of
the top brands in Saudi Arabia in 2015.

••

Adoption
of
the
proposed
modifications on the Human
Resources Executive Regulations.

3. Future Prospects

••

Adoption of the Underwriting Manual
for medical insurance and motor
insurance.

••

Preparation of a road map to comply
with the new regulations issued by
the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency
(SAMA) and the new Companies Law,
including the new instructions of
SAMA issued to regulate the property
and casualty insurance market.

••

Development of the e-Commerce
infrastructure and implementation
of information systems allowing the
addition of extra services and benefits
to support electronic services.

••

Planning and implementation of
several projects to promote the
concept of “Customer Centricity” that
improves the customer experience
and enhances the services provided
to them.

••

Improvement of cost controls and
the formation of a team to rationalize
the costs and raise the efficiencies of
claims and underwriting processes.

••

Implementation of new analytical
tools to expand the Company’s
analytical capabilities.

Despite the challenges faced by the
Kingdom’s economy affected by the
noticeable decline in oil prices, Tawuniya
is expected to continue the efforts to
maintain its outstanding rating in 2016.
The Company will strengthen its market
leadership- focused approach to business
and profitable growth. Tawuniya is working
on tapping into available opportunities in
the Saudi insurance market by providing
efficient and effective offers, competitive
product prices in line with the actuarial
pricing assessment and optimizing sales
processes and distribution channels.
The company is planning partnerships
to support its business growth and
penetration in the market, in addition to
the effective management of information
systems and applications for improved
and advanced analytical reporting. The
Company will also promote and conduct
customer centricity initiatives to further
enhance the clients’ experience levels.
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4. Current & Future Risk Management

e) Liquidity Risk:

4-1 Current Risks

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company might encounter
difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated
with financial liabilities. The company has an adequate cashmanagement system, where daily collections and payments
of cash are monitored and settled by the end of the day. The
Company manages these risks by keeping the maturity of
financial assets and liabilities and invests a large portion of
the Company’s assets in highly liquid instruments.

Within its endeavor to implement its projects and manage its
operations, the Company faces many different risks, and it is
working to reduce and manage them by the means and resources
available. The following is a list of the current risks:
a) Insurance Risk
The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured
event might occur including the uncertainty of the amount and
timing of any resulting claim. The principal risk the Company
faces under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit
payments exceed the carrying amount of insurance liabilities.
This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims,
actual benefits paid being greater than originally estimated and
subsequent development of long-term claims.

f)

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising
from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes,
technology and infrastructure supporting the Company’s
operations either internally within the Company or externally
at the Company’s service providers, and from external factors
other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those
arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally
accepted standards of investment management behavior.
Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.
Senior Management ensures that the Company’s staff has
adequate training and experience and fosters effective
communication related to operational risk management.

b) Reinsurance Risk
In order to minimize financial exposure arising from large
claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters
into agreements with other parties for reinsurance purposes.
To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer
insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition
of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk
arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic
characteristics of the reinsurers.

g) Competition in the market putting pressure on prices
Considering the number of companies in the insurance market
and in the process of capturing the market, they may resort to
pricing their products and services very competitively.

c) Market Risk and Assets Liability Management:
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument
may fluctuate as a result of changes in market commission
rates or the market price of securities or the instrument,
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and
demand for securities and liquidity in the market. Market risk
comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, commission rate
risk and other price risk. The Board of Directors of the Company
ensure that the overall market risk exposure is maintained at
prudent levels and is consistent with the available capital.

h) Maintaining the operating standards in the light of business
expansion
When the business expands, it warrants delegation of
authorities, additional infrastructure etc. and it is a challenge
to ensure the appropriate actions across the entire network
to maintain the operating standards to retain the clientele.
i)

d) Credit Risk:
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument
might fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party
to incur a financial loss. The maximum credit risk exposure
to the Company is the carrying value as disclosed in the
financial statements at the statement of financial position
date. The Company seeks to limit its credit risk with respect
to customers by setting credit limits for individual customers
and monitoring outstanding receivables.

Operational Risk:

Changed risk profile of the Company’s business portfolio
due to implementation of compulsory medical regulations;
portfolio skewed towards Medical line of business
In line with the insurance industry practice in general, medical
insurance represents the largest share in the company’s
portfolio, as such there would be risk from the medical
insurance portfolio compared to the other types of insurance.

j)

Company’s processes and systems need to be flexible enough
to handle the business growth, changing market practices,
and complex policy structures
The infrastructure & the processes adopted need to cope
up with the demands of the business growth and changing
market practices, in order to avoid any problems that might
face business.
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k) Risk Accumulation

4-3. Main risk management activities in 2015

Accumulation of risks at a location or region might incorporate
an increase in the size of loss. Accumulation arises when a large
number of individual risks are correlated such that a single
event might affect many or all of these risks simultaneously.
For example issuing several commercial property policies in
the same location, or multiple commercial risks underwritten
for the same customer, or insuring multiple sea vessels and
sea voyages on the same route.
l)

In 2015, the Company has implemented several activities
related to risk management; the most important was the
review of capital requirements for maintaining regulatory
solvency margin and for meeting the capital requirement for
the targeted rating. Some projects have been implemented
by the technical business units to enhance the Enterprise
Risk Management (ERM). The Audit Committee reviewed the
Annual Financial Condition Report prepared by the appointed
actuary. The committee also reviewed the regulatory solvency
position, adequacy of technical reserves & significant risks and
the medical & motor underwriting practices. In addition, the
company developed the Corporate Risk Register/Divisional
Risk registers, plus the monitoring of 19 entities’ Risk Profiles
status and issuing reports on the status of actual control
environment against acceptable environment as per CRSA
(Control and Risk Self Assessment). The company conducted
a revision of 6 entities’ Risk Profiles to align them with current
business and risk environment. It also developed a risk profile
newly for the E-Commerce Department. The efforts were
exerted by various departments in establishing processes for
capturing early warning signs of the risks that may impact their
operations and devising required controls. In 2015, Tawuniya
also developed an internal model for assessing market risk
of Fixed Income and Equity Investments. A test of Business
Continuity and Contingency Plan (BCCP) was conducted
and awareness sessions were held for various departments in
addition to the review of policies and procedures and aligning
them with applicable legal, regulatory, and control provisions.

High staff turnover
Besides increasing the cost of recruitment & training, it will
adversely affect the operational efficiency and in turn the
customer service, as the new employees take some time to
understand the processes and handle the functions in the
desired manner.

m) Leakage of sensitive information
Leakage of business sensitive information may put the
Company in disadvantageous position and may lead to loss
of business.
n) Frauds and Financial crimes
Fraud or abuse in financial operations, claims operations and
sales affect the Company’s performance and reputation.
o) Breaching of regulations of CMA, SAMA, CCHI and MOC
Breaching the regulations may impose financial penalties
which may in turn affect the company’s reputation.
p) Global economies slowdown affecting the investments
performance

5. Description of Operating Activities
••

Year 2015 has witnessed several activities in medical insurance,
the most important was re-structuring the pricing process,
establishing new service providers networks, development of
quotations issuing processes, as well as creation of the medical
insurance plan for visitors. The Company has developed medical
insurance plans to conform to the new service providers
networks. It also upgraded the claim reconciliation operation
to decrease its time. The development process also included
the Electronic pricing systems, anti-fraud system and online
invoicing & reconciliation. In addition, the medical sector
prepared for the next level of coding the services and diagnoses.

•

Motor insurance activities focused on the application of a new
pricing mechanism according to a recent actuarial study and
developing a new Al-shamel insurance plan for VIP clients. The
Company has activated its partnership programs with some
companies for serving the motor insurance customers and
the provision of special offers for their services. In addition to
the implementation of several marketing campaigns to raise
awareness of the geographical extension to Al-Shamel motor
insurance program.

•

Property and Casualty activities included the launch of
a new business concept to cater to ever growing needs of
Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) and to facilitate the
provision of insurance protection and services offered to
this sector after signing a memorandum of understanding
with “Kafalah” program. The Company also launched
business packages which are designed to provide property
and casualty insurance programs for the various business
sectors in the Kingdom. In addition, the Company conducted
the re-engineering of Medical Malpractice Insurance and

Investment returns are affected by economic situations and
the difficulties or recessions that might occur.
q) Geopolitical situations impacting the Company’s insurance
contracts and investments
Geopolitical situations may affect the insurance contracts
more particularly of P&C lines, reinsurance arrangements and
also the investments.
r)

Changing Regulatory, Legal, and Behavioural environment
affecting the Company performance
This may put the Company at the disadvantageous position due
to additional costs required to incur to meet the requirements.

4-2. Future prospective risks
a) Considering the KSA economic outlook in coming year due to
slump in oil prices, there may not be high potential growth
in insurance premiums and as such increasing / retaining the
market share will be challenging.
b) As the new generation population is tech savvy and more into
technology, the traditional sales channels may decrease and
therefore smart device applications may play a critical role in
expanding more particularly the retail business.
c) It is important to maintain strong capital base, to have an
edge over others, as the market is fragmented and facing
severe pricing competition.
d) Managing information technology risks will be challenging,
especially in light of the increasing reliance on technology in
conducting the insurance business.
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Property Insurance by adopting best international practices
for prudent underwriting in the Saudi insurance market. The
Salvage & Recovery Unit was established for better recovery
prospects. As well as the quotation/ policy workflow was
generated in the system to facilitate underwriting process.
Also, the Company has devised a new hazard ranking system
and accurate risk data specification followed by supporting
the risk accumulation system, which is now more accurate
and in line with internationally recognized hazard scales of the
risks, in addition to the provision of co-branded promotional
campaigns to the clients of certain lines of business such as
travel insurance.
••

••

The Company has devoted much attention for the
e-commerce activities, as it obtained SAMA’s approval for the
innovative online portal solution to sell insurance products
online through third party websites. Also, the Company
developed its website, whereby it became distinct in terms of
design and services. In this context, the Company is launching
selling its Al-Shamel motor comprehensive insurance product
online along with the SANAD Plus Insurance. In preparation
for its launch in 2016, the Company has re-designed and
developed the existing electronic sales systems for the
SANAD compulsory motor vehicles liability insurance and
the international travel insurance. The Company issued
an indicative premium calculator, as well as re-designing
the new Tawuniya smart device app. The Company also
established the new compulsory visit visa medical insurance
sales system, in coordination with the Council of Cooperative
Health Insurance (CCHI) and the Ministry of Foreign Affairs
(MOFA). In addition, the Company launched the eligibility
letter online service provided to medical clients through the
approved service providers. The e-service sales have witnessed
a significant growth during 2015, and are expected to rise at a
higher rate after the activation of such activities.
The “Customer Centricity” strategy formed the core of the
Company’s customer service activities in 2015, which aims at
rendering the customer the attention focus by all departments.
The Company has conducted workshops for the Call Center and
back office teams to activate that strategy. Several programs
have been launched in 2015, the most important are the
customer segments program, running innovation program, the
monthly customer service champion competition for the best
customer centric staff, as well as day with customer program.
The year also witnessed the activation of a number of valueadded services, including “Tabibi” Service, Tawuniya Health
Zone, Eligibility Letter, Dawae Online Service, Health and
Wellness Program, Home Healthcare Service and sponsorship
program through which Tawuniya conducted events at client’s
premises to promote Dawae service and increase the awareness
of chronic diseases in addition to special discount offers.
The customer service sector has carried out the process of
transformation to the new customer-centric IVR, the hospital
coordinators transformation to customer services, as well as
the formation of call back team to acquire customer feedback
and as an evaluation after calls. Many other customer services
are provided including resending medical approvals based on
customer requests, new medical packaging, and adding new
policy issuing service to SADAD, in addition to establishing a
new customer experience department aiming at the increase
of the “customer centricity” culture within the Company. The
Call Center has received over a million phone calls focused on
sales, medical, motor and E-services.

••

The expansion of the sales network and distribution
channels plan continued by adding five new sales offices in
2015, and therefore the total number of the Company sales
offices increased to 116, in addition to the agents, brokers and
marketing representatives channels..

••

The recruitment and development activities carried out by
the Company in 2015 targeted the support of Saudization
plan and increasing its ratio to around 79%. This also included
the participation in “Your job and your scholarship” program
launched by the Ministry of Education for sending candidates
abroad for disciplines and jobs desirable by the companies
and establishments. The Company also participated in the
Career Days conducted by Saudi universities to attract
distinctive competencies of graduates in various disciplines
and specializations. The Talent Development Center organized
120 training programs in-house and outside to develop the
staff skills. The Center designed new initiatives included the
development of training kits at three levels: professional,
managerial and technical, as well as the application of
Executive Management Program. The staff of the business
segments underwent a series of technical training programs
and workshops to learn about the global practices and
standards applicable in the developed markets, particularly
with regard to the mechanisms of risk identification and
underwriting operations.

•

Support Services Department has completed the
construction and preperation of the extension building
attached with the Head Office Building during March 2015.
The Department also carried out the electrical loads backup
project for the Head Office and New Extension buildings to
ensure business continuity in the event of a power outage
along with the development of a number of means and
mechanisms to enhance security and safety.

••

Within the social responsibility activities, Tawuniya has
continued its support of the Prince Fahad Bin Salman Charity
Association for Renal Failure Patients Care “Kelana”, which
started in 2006. During October 2015, the Company also
participated in breast cancer awareness events. The company
also distributed devices to support patients with diabetes, as
well as the implementation of a monthly program to provide
medical tips and awareness materials on some chronic diseases.
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6. Statement of Financial Position for the Last Five Years (2011-2015)
( SR’000)
2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2,012,665

1,817,917

1,983,362

2,888,419

3,236,219

1,317,120

1,863,276

1,510,498

1,529,113

1,943,579

143,231

473,239

792,078

700,550

761,868

1,249,938

1,122,827

2,189,214

1,644,187

2,125,883

528,716

699,814

1,255,320

922,649

1,033,057

5,251,670

5,977,073

7,730,472

7,684,918

9,100,606

74,914

35,597

-

-

46,326

1,871,745

2,007,393

1,936,104

2,133,005

2,259,325

Statutory deposit

75,000

75,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

Cash and cash equivalents

110,524

122,781

198,766

20,583

62,855

Total assets- shareholders

2,132,183

2,240,771

2,234,870

2,253,588

2,468,506

Total Assets

7,383,853

8,217,844

9,965,342

9,938,506

11,569,112

2011

2012

2013

Surplus distribution payable

47,365

27,201

Reinsurers' balances payable

491,691

Assets - Insurance Operations
Investments
Receivables, net
Cash and cash equivalents
Reinsurers' share
Other assets
Total assets - insurance operations
Assets - Shareholders
Due from insurance operations
Investments and accrued income

( SR’000)
2014

2015

-

46,895

100,176

381,591

345,793

313,900

502,579

74,914

35,597

-

-

46,326

3,729,059

4,224,876

6,017,265

6,022,506

7,159,630

945,045

1,276,768

1,288,843

1,296,263

1,394,844

38,510

66,637

78,571

5,354

-102,949

5,251,670

5,977,073

7,730,472

7,684,918

9,100,606

83,325

97,833

594,302

177,213

159,438

Share Capital

750,000

750,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

Legal reserve

587,812

651,756

651,756

763,779

883,465

Fair value reserve on investments

160,159

198,418

288,183

163,874

-56,861

Accumulated (loss)/ profit

550,887

542,764

-299,371

148,722

482,464

2,132,183

2,240,771

2,234,870

2,253,588

2,468,506

7,383,853

8,217,844

9,965,342

9,938,506

11,569,112

Liabilities and surplus -Insurance Operations

Due to shareholders' Operations
Reserves
Other liabilities
Fair value reserve on investments
Total Liabilities and surplus -Insurance Operations
Liabilities and Equity – Shareholders
Zakat and other liabilities

Total shareholders' liabilities and equity
Total Liabilities, Insurance Operation Surplus and Shareholders' Equity
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7.

Business Results for the Last Five Financial Years, 2011 – 2015

(SR’ millions)
Description

2011

2012

2013

Gross written premiums

4,431

5,635

5,605

6,208

7,545

Net premiums earned

3,098

3,951

4,728

4,804

5,665

Total operating revenues

3,249

4,198

5,036

5,005

5,804

Gross claims paid

3,119

3,662

4,759

4,672

4,999

Net claims incurred

2,095

3,232

4,883

3,757

4,144

Total operating costs and expenses

2,818

3,980

5,693

4,536

5,342

432

218

-813

426

462

Net Investments Income (insurance operations)

44

58

155

43

88

Impairment charges for Investments (insurance operations)

-2

-4

-

-

-18

474

272

-657

469

533

49

111

93

180

200

Surplus (deficit) from insurance operations

Surplus (loss) of insurance operations
Net investment income (shareholders' funds)
Impairment charges for Investments (shareholders' funds)
Shareholders’ operations net income (loss)

2014

2015

-1

-3

-

-

-36

439

320

-591

560

598

8. Description of Principal Activities:
The company is composed of strategic business units based on its products and services and has three operating segments divided
as follows: Medical Insurance providing coverage for healthcare, Motor Insurance, and Property & Casualty insurance which includes
coverage for property, engineering, marine, aviation, energy and general accident insurance. In addition, the company is operating the
third party liability insurance for foreign vehicles (Manafeth) and the profit of this segment is shared with other insurance companies.
The following table shows the results of operating segments and their contribution to the Company’s business for the fiscal year of 2015.
( SR’000)
Operating Segments

Medical

Motor

Total gross premiums written

4,912,806

1,294,864

195,352

1,142,246

7,545,268

Net premiums written

4,798,758

1,294,864

195,352

132,478

6,421,452

Net premiums earned

4,287,836

1,080,815

157,550

138,624

5,664,825

194

(4,391)

-

97,820

93,623

(3,313,344)

(751,661)

(53,818)

(25,087)

(4,143,910)

Policy acquisition costs

(225,775)

(141,696)

(24,129)

(44,988)

(436,588)

Excess of loss expenses

-

(12,612)

(2,330)

(9,485)

(24,427)

2,873

-

-

-

2,873

(92,206)

(13,782)

(9,986)

(18,623)

(134,597)

(329,040)

(124,521)

(17,422)

(85,364)

(556,347)

330,538

32,152

49,865

52,897

465,452

Reinsurance commissions
Net claims incurred

Changes in Takaful Reserve
Other underwriting expenses
General, administrative, operating and selling expenses
Profit from Insurance Operations

Manafith

P&C

Total

Investment gains

88,251

Other income

45,886

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

(17,696)

Manafeth Insurance share

(49,087)

Surplus from Insurance Operations

532,806
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9. Gross Written Premiums and Geographical Analysis
The Gross Written Premiums had reached SR 7,545 million in 2015, compared to SR 6,208 million in 2014 realizing a growth rate of
22%. The Company’s business is mainly conducted in Saudi Arabia and has acquired all premiums from clients inside the Kingdom. The
following table shows the distribution of gross written premiums in the regions of Saudi Arabia in 2015.
Region

Gross Written Premiums (In SR million)

Central Region

4,477

Western Region

1,368

Eastern Region

1,406

Northern Region

36

Southern Region

29

Head Office

229

Total

7,545

10. Material Differences in the Operating Results
Description

Year
2015

(In SR millions)
Year
2014

Change
Volume

Change
Ratio (%)

Reason

642.3

602.3

40

7%

The reason behind the rise of net income before
Zakat compared to the similar period of the
previous year is attributed to the increase of net
premiums earned at 18% which contributed to
the increase of surplus from insurance operations
at 8.56%, plus the increase of the net income of
policyholders’ investments at 63.58%.

5.98

5.60

0.38

7%

This is due to the net income from shareholders’
operations after Zakat amounted to SR 598 million
compared to SR 560 million realized in 2014.

462.3

425.8

36.5

9%

This is due to the increase of net premiums earned
at 18%.

Gross written premiums (GWP)

7,545.3

6,207.6

1,337

22%

The expansion in the Company’s insurance
business and the growth of operational sectors
comprising: medical insurance at 18%, P&C at
13% and motor insurance at 24%.

Net written premiums (NWP)

6,421.5

5,293

1,128.5

22%

As a result of the growth of the company’s
business at 22% and decrease of premiums ceded
to re-insurers at 23%.

Net earned premiums (NEP)

5,664.8

4,804

860.80

18%

The increase in the net premiums earned is realized
as a result of the increase in the net changes in the
unearned premiums compared to the previous year.

Net claims incurred

4,143.9

3,659.4

484.50

13%

Increase is due to the rise of outstanding claims at
high ratio compared to the previous year.

70.6

43.1

27.50

64%

The increase of profits is attributed to the
restructuring of some investments leading to
the realization of profits from the policyholders’
operations investments

163.8

180.4

(16.60)

(9%)

The decrease is attributed to the allocation of
impairment charges for investment.

5,804.3

4,961.6

842.70

17%

The increase is primarily attributed to the increase
of the premiums earned at 18%.

4,999

4,575

424

9%

Business expansion and increase in the number and
amount of claims in the medical insurance sector.

Net income (loss) before Zakat

Share profit (loss) in SR
Surplus (deficit) from insurance operations
before return on policyholders investments
(results of operational transactions)

Insurance operations’ investment income,
net
Shareholders’ operations Investment
income, net
Total Operating Revenues
Gross claims paid
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11. The Dividend Policy
The Company currently applies the Dividend Policy approved by the Board of Directors on September 6, 2010 and in compliance with its Articles of
Association. The main objective of the Dividend Policy is to support anticipated business growth and maintaining of the regular dividend payments
to shareholders without affecting the long-term sustainability of the company. This policy is in compliance with the regulations issued by Saudi
Arabian Monetary Agency, whereby the shareholders of the company are to receive 90% of the surplus resulted from insurance operations and
the policyholders are to receive the remaining 10%. Based on this policy, the Board of Directors’ recommends to the company’s General Assembly
the amount of profits to be distributed to shareholders. This amount is determined in accordance with the net surplus of insurance operations and
net income of shareholders’ investments, taking into consideration some criteria. The most important of which, is the company’s performance,
financial conditions, liquidity condition, the regulatory solvency margin stipulated by the regulatory authority, and the adequate capital that
supports the independent target credit rating, which is subject to the ability of the company to continue its business expansion.
Profit Distribution Policy of the company is based on Article (44) of its Articles of Association. According to this article, the Shareholders’
profits shall be distributed in the following way:
1.

Zakat allocations to be withheld.

2. Twenty percent (20%) of the net profits shall be allocated for the formation of a legal reserve. This allocation will be discontinued if
the legal reserve reaches 100% of the paid- up capital.
3. An amount of the remainder, equal to 5% of the paid up capital, shall then be distributed to shareholders as a first installment.
4. An amount of the remainder, not to exceed 10%, shall be distributed as remuneration to the members of the Board of Directors
(BOD), as set in established rules and regulations.
5. The remainder shall be distributed to shareholders as a share in profits or transferred to a retained profits account.
6. By decision of the Board of Directors (BOD), periodical profits deducted from the annual profits cited under subsection (3) above
may be distributed, in accordance with applicable rules and regulations issued by competent authorities.
12. Surplus from Insurance Operations Proposed for 2015:
Insurance operations with return on investments realized a surplus amounting to SR 533 million in 2015. In accordance with the
requirements of the Executive Regulations of the Cooperative Insurance Law, 90% of the surplus from insurance operations, in the value
of SR 480 million was transferred to the statement of shareholders’ comprehensive income, while SR 53 million (equal to 10% of the
remaining surplus) will be distributed to policyholders.
13. Shareholders’ Earnings Proposed for 2015:
The shareholders’ operations realized a net profit amounting to SR 598 million in 2015, after deducting statutory Zakat. Therefore, the earnings
per share amounted to SR 5.98 in 2015. Hence, the Board of Directors recommends to the Ordinary General Assembly to distribute dividends
to shareholders amounting to SR 100 million at SR 1 per share for year 2015 (The amount of SR 145 has been distributed to shareholders for the
year 2014). In addition, there is no arrangement or agreement, under which any shareholder has waived his rights to profits.
14. Board of Directors’ Remuneration Proposed for 2015:
In accordance with Article (44) of the company’s Articles of Association, a maximum of 10% of shareholders’ retained profits shall be
allocated for distribution to the Board of Directors (BOD) based on a decision by the General Assembly and as provided for in the relevant
regulations. Accordingly, the Board has proposed a distribution of SR 1.8 million to its members for 2015.
15. Associate Companies and Their Business Activities and Revenues
Associates represent companies where 20%- 50% of the outstanding shares are owned by Tawuniya or the company has significant influence,
but not control over the associate’s operations. Since Tawuniya owns shares in three associates, the following is a statement for these companies:

Company
Name

Main
Business
Activity

Country of Country of
Business Incorporation

No. of
shares

No. of debt
instrument

Paid-up
capital
SR’000

Tawuniya’s
Share %

Revenues
SR’000

Tawuniya’s
Share in
Profit
SR’000

2,500,000

0

50,000

50%

70,307

14,273

United Insurance
Company

Insurance

Bahrain

Bahrain

Waseel Application
Services Provider

Electronic
linking

Saudi
Arabia

Saudi
Arabia

60,000

0

24,000

45%

28,389

5,171

Najm Insurance
Services Company

Insurance
services

Saudi
Arabia

Saudi
Arabia

1,923,080

0

50,000

8%

215,767

4,383

Note: Revenues of the United Insurance Company as of 30 November 2015, revenues of the Waseel Application Services Provider as of 30 November 2015 and
revenues of the Najm Insurance Services Company as of 30 September 2015.
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With regard to geographic analysis of the revenues of subsidiaries outside Saudi Arabia, the (United Insurance Company) principally
conducts its business in the Kingdom of Bahrain. Therefore its revenues are acquired from premiums by clients inside Bahrain. In 2015,
Tawuniya acquired its shares in the profits of the United Insurance Company as well as signing an insurance services contract with the
United Insurance Company. This contract has been disclosed in section (25) of this report. As for the other two subsidiaries inside the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, i.e. (Waseel Application Services Provider and Najm Insurance Services Company) are transacting their business
activity inside the Saudi Arabia only and therefore their revenues are acquired from clients inside the KSA. In addition to its share of
profits, Tawuniya acquired insurance premiums from Waseel Application Services Provider against the medical insurance contract to its
employees. This contract has been disclosed in section (25) of this report.
16. Compliance with Corporate Governance Regulations
Tawuniya has applied all articles of the Corporate Governance issued by the Capital Market Authority (CMA), except Paragraph (d) of
article (6) due to the difficulty to verify as the article provides for (Investors who are judicial persons and who act on behalf of others - e.g.
investment funds- shall disclose in their annual reports their voting policies, actual voting, and ways of dealing with any material conflict
of interests that may affect the practice of the fundamental rights in relation to their investments). Also the Paragraph (i) of article (12) is
not applicable which provides for (Judicial person who is entitled under the company’s Articles of Association to appoint representatives
in the Board of Directors, is not entitled to nomination vote of other members of the Board of Directors).

17. Formation of the Board of Directors, Classification of its Members and Joint Stock Companies in which Tawuniya BOD member
acts as member of its Board:
The Ordinary General Assembly convened on the 16th of March, 2014 elected the BOD members for the tenth session began on the 26th of
March, 2014 and lasts for a three-year period expiring on the 25th of March, 2017. During 2015, Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al-Modaimigh has resigned
on the 1st of March, 2015 and Mr. Ahmed Fareed Al-Ulaqi has resigned on the 1st of November, 2015. HE Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
has been nominated as a BOD member on the 9th of February, 2015 and the Ordinary General Assembly convened on the 16th of March,
2015 approved this nomination. Mr. Abdul Aziz Ibrahim Al-Nuwaiser and Mr. Ghassan Abdul Karim Al-Malki have been nominated as BOD
members on the 12th of May, 2015 and the 1st of November, 2015 respectively. This nomination will be presented to the Ordinary General
Assembly scheduled on the 21st of March, 2016. Therefore, the formation of the Board of Directors became as follows:

Member Name

Executive

Non-Executive

HE Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd,
Chairman
Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa
Vice Chairman

Independent

Joint stock companies in which the
Tawuniya BOD member acts as a
member of its Board

ü

Al-Faislaih Group, United Insurance
Company (Bahrain).

Members Classification

Riyad Bank, United Insurance
Company (Bahrain).

ü

Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez
Director

ü

Al-Ra'idah Investment Company,
National Petrochemical Company and
United Insurance Company (Bahrain).

Mr. Saad A. Al-Marzoqi
Director

ü

United Insurance Company (Bahrain).

Mr. Ali A. Al-Subaihin
Director

Najm Insurance Services Company,
Waseel Application Service Provider
and Ittihad Ittisalat Company (Mobily)

ü

Mr. Abdulaziz Abdullah Al Zaid
Director

ü

NCB, NCB Capital Company up to
1/5/2015, DAEM Real Estate Investment

Mr. Hamood A. Al Twaigery
Director

ü

Tabuk Cement Company, Alinma Bank
and Ittihad Ittisalat Company (Mobily)

Mr. Ghassan Abdul Karim Al-Malki
Director
Mr. Abdul Aziz I. Al-Nuwaiser
Director

ü

None

ü

None
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18. The Number of Board Meetings and the Attendance Record of Each Meeting
Tawuniya BOD held 7 meetings during 2015. The following is the attendance record of each meeting:
No. of
meetings

Soliman Waleed A.
Al-Humayyd
Aleisa

Abdullah Abdulaziz
Ali
Saad
Ahmed. F.
Al-Fayez Al-Modaimigh Al-Subaihin Al-Marzoqi Al-Aulaqi

Abdulaziz Hamood Abdul Aziz I. Ghassan A
Al-Zaid Al-Twaigery Al-Nuwaiser Al-Malki

1st Meeting
4/2/2015

Resigned

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Was not a Was not a
Director
Director

2nd Meeting
27/4/2015

Attended

Attended

Attended

Resigned

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Was not a Was not a
Director
Director

3rd Meeting
28/4/2015

Attended

Attended

Attended

Resigned

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Was not a Was not a
Director
Director

4th Meeting
1/7/2015

Attended

Attended

Attended

Resigned

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Was not a
Director

5th Meeting
16/9/2015

Attended

Attended

Attended

Resigned

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

Was not a
Director

6th Meeting
28/10/2015

Attended

Attended

Attended

Resigned

Attended

Attended

Did not
Attend

Attended

Attended

Attended

Was not a
Director

7th Meeting
22/12/2015

Attended

Attended

Attended

Resigned

Attended

Attended

Resigned

Attended

Attended

Attended

Attended

6

7

7

1

7

7

5

7

7

4

1

Total

19. A Brief Description of the Jurisdictions and Duties of BOD Committees
a) Executive Committee
Committee Jurisdictions and Duties

Chairman and Members

The Committee is responsible for providing
recommendations to the Board of Directors (BOD)
on various important issues such as strategic and
business plans. The Committee has been delegated
with certain executive authorities of the Board.

Chairman:
H.E Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
Members:
Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa
Mr. Ali A. Al-Subaihin
Mr. Raeed A. Al Tamimi

Meetings in 2015

4

b) Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Committee Jurisdictions and Duties

Chairman and Members

The Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the BOD for nominations,
preparing a description of capabilities and
qualifications required for BOD membership and
reviewing the structure of the Board. This includes
the assessment criteria for independence of the
BOD’s independent members, the design of clear
policies on the remuneration of Board members
and the discussion of issues related to employees’
compensation and benefits.

Chairman:
H.E Mr. Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
Members:
Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa
Mr. Ali A. Al-Subaihin
Mr. Saad A. Al-Marzoqi

Meetings in 2015

3
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c) Audit Committee
Committee Jurisdictions and Duties

Chairman and Members

The Committee is responsible for activating the Board’s
recommendations related to the supervision of the
Company’s financial reporting and financial statements
and evaluating the adequacy of the internal and
external auditing processes as well as the assessment
and monitoring of the risk management operations and
their control methodology.

Chairman:
Mr. Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

The Audit Committee supervised the internal control
activities during 2015. Also, the Committee has
reviewed all reports issued by the Internal Audit
Department and monitored the implementation of all
recommendations in all divisions and departments of
the company. In addition, the Committee also provided
independent services and consultations on the Internal
Control System, followed up the management of
internal audit process utilizing the audit on the basis of
risk methodology, which was applied in order to ensure
the company’s ability to achieve its strategic objectives.
During 2015, the Committee presented some
fundamental issues pertaining to the internal control
system before the Board of Directors and proposed
specific corrective actions to be implemented by the
company’s management.

Meetings in 2015

Members:
• Mr. Abdul Aziz I. Al- Nuwaiser
• Mr. Alaa Abdullah Al-Faddi
• Mr. Turky Al-Luhaid
• Mr. Thamer Al-Otaish
16

d) Investment Committee
Committee Jurisdictions and Duties

Chairman and Members

The Committee is responsible for drawing up
Tawuniya’s investment policy and monitoring its
performance and approval on the investment activities.
The Committee also monitors the performance of the
Company’s investment portfolios.

Chairman:
Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al Zaid,
Members:
Mr. Hamood A. Al Twaigery
Mr. Raeed A. Al Tamimi

Meetings in 2015

6

20. The Capital and Ownership of Company Shares
The authorized, issued and paid-up capital of the company amounts to SR 1,000 million (One Billion Saudi Riyals). It is divided into 100
million nominal shares of SR10 each. The ownership of company shares reflected at the beginning and end of the year are as follows:
Owner

No. of Shares
Beginning of the Year

No. of Shares
Close of the Year

Change Ratio

Ownership Ratio

Public Pension Agency

23,790,148

23,790,148

0%

23.79%

General Organization for
Social Insurance

22,839,445

22,839,445

0%

22.84%

Held by the public

53,370,407

53,370,407

0%

53.37%

Total

100,000,000

100,000,000

0%

100%
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21. A Description of Interest in a Class of Voting Shares Held by Persons (Except the BOD Members, Senior Executives and Their
Relatives), which have Notified the Company of Their Holdings and any Changes thereto During the Financial Year:
Excluding the Public Pension Agency (PPA) and the General Organization for Social Insurance (GOSI) there is no other shareholder having
5% or more shares of Tawuniya. No entity, having interest in the voting shares and that simultaneously owns 5% or more of shares, has
notified the Company of their holdings or any change to such interests during the fiscal year of 2015.
22. A Description of Interest, Contrctual Securities and Subscription Rights of the Company’s Directors and their Relatives in the
Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and any Changes in such Interest or Rights during the
Financial Year:

Name of person to whom
interest is accrued

Beginning of the Year

Closing of the Year
Change Ratio

No. of Shares

No. of Shares

162,912

0

166,212

0

3,300

2.03%

89

0

89

0

0

0%

Abdullah M. Al-Fayez

12,000

0

12,000

0

0

0%

Ali A. Al-Subaihin

62,000

0

22,000

0

(40,000)

(65%)

2000

0

2000

0

0

0%

21,000

0

21,000

0

0

0%

Hamood A. Al-Twaigery

1,100

0

300

0

(800)

(73%)

Abdulaziz I. Al-Nuwaiser
(New Director)

0

0

200

0

-

-

Ghassan A. Al-Malki
(New Director)

0

0

0

0

-

-

Soliman S. Al-Humayyd
Waleed A. Aleisa

Saad A. Al-Marzoqi
Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid

No. of Debt
Instruments

Net Change

No. of Debt
Instruments

The Public Pension Agency has allocated 1,000 shares to the Capital Market Authority (CMA), under the name of its representative in
Tawuniya’s Board of Directors (BOD), Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa, as liability shares. The General Organization for Social Insurance (GOSI) has
allocated 1,000 shares to the Capital Market Authority (CMA), under the name of its representative in Tawuniya’s Board of Directors
(BOD), Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki, as liability shares.
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23. A Description of Interest, Contrctual Securities and Subscription Rights of the Company’s Senior Executives and Their Relatives in the
Shares or Debt Instruments of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries and any Changes in such Interest or Rights during the Financial Year:

Name of Person to Whom
Interest is Accrued

Beginning of the Year

Closing of the Year
Net Change

Change Ratio

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0

0%

0

0

0

0

0

0%

Abdullah A. Al Arfaj
VP-Medical & Takaful

0

0

0

0

0

0%

Sultan S. Al Khomashi
(VP- P&C)

0

0

0

0

0

0%

Fawaz A. Al Hijji
(VP-Motor)

0

0

0

0

0

0%

No. of Shares

No. of Debt
Instruments

No. of Shares

No. of Debt
Instruments

Raeed A. Al-Tamimi
(CEO)

0

0

0

Abdulaziz H. Al Boug
(SVP-Sales)

0

0

Amro A. Al-Nemri
(CFO)

0

Fahad S. Al Moammar
(VP-Investment)

24. Remunerations and Compensations of BOD Members and Senior Executives

Description

BOD Members
(Executives)

BOD members
(Non-Executives/Independent)

Five Senior Executives
Including the CEO and CFO

Salaries and compensation

--

--

5,397,000

Allowances

--

744,000

1,888,950

Periodical and annual
remunerations

--

1,794,000

3,250,000

End of service benefits

--

--

1,843,000

Stimulus plans

--

--

364,517

Other compensations or benefits

--

--

--

Total

--

2,538,000

12,743,467

Like the Company personnel, BOD members are granted an insurance cover for home and private motor vehicles at reduced rates (up to two
motor vehicles for each BOD member). Added to that, each BOD member obtains free medical insurance for him and his family members
at the same benefits provided in the Medical Insurance Policy applicable to the staff of Tawuniya. As a note, there are no arrangements or
agreements, under which any member of the Board of Directors or a senior executive has waived any salary or remuneration.
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25. Contracts to which the Company is Party and in which a Director, a Senior Executive or a Shareholder is Materially Interested
During 2015, some contracts were in force with organizations to which the Company or its subsidiaries are a party and in which some
members of Tawuniya’s Board of Directors’ (BOD), as representatives to major shareholders or associates have significant interests. These
contracts were entered in accordance with legal rules, policy and procedures adopted by the Company or other parties. These contracts
include the following:
Contract type & time

Amount

Related Parties

Stakeholder

Insurance contract for one year

SR 21.8 million

Al-Faisaliah Group

Mr. Soliman Saad Al-Humayyd
The Chairman

Insurance contract for one year

SR 9.5 million

The Public Pension Agency.

Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa,
Vice Chairman

Insurance contract for one year

SR 30.4 million

The General Organization for Social
Insurance

Mr. Ghassan Al-Malki
Director

Insurance contract for one year

SR 114.8 million

NCB

Mr. Abdulaziz A. Al-Zaid
Director
Mr. Ali Al-Subaihin,
Director

Insurance contract for one year

SR 792,000

Waseel Application Services Provider.

Mr. Raeed A. Al-Tamimi Tawuniya CEO and
Waseel BOD member
Mr. Abdullah Al- Arfaj , VP-Medical & Takaful
of Tawuniya and BOD member of Waseel

Insurance service contract for
one year

SR 8.5 million

United Insurance Company

Mr. Soliman Al-Humayyd
Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa,
Mr. Abdullah A. Al-Fayez
Mr. Fahad Al-Moammar

Insurance service contract for
one year

SR 41.3 million

Najm Insurance Services Company

Mr. Ali Al-Subaihin,
Director

Clients healthcare service
contract for one year

SR 29.7 million

Riyadh National Hospital
(in which the General Organization for Social
Insurance contributes in its ownership).

Mr. Ghassan Abul Kareem Al-Malki
Director

Clients healthcare service
contract for one year

SR 32.5 million

Riyadh Care Hospital
(in which the General Organization for Social
Insurance contributes in its ownership).

Mr. Ghassan Abul Kareem Al-Malki
Director

Rental contract for the Company
offices in ABRAJ Building for one
year.

SR 1.8 million

The Cooperative Real Estate Investment
Company in which GOSI and PPA have
shares in it sownership).

Mr. Waleed A. Aleisa,
Mr. Ghassan A. Al-Malki

Re-insurance contract for one
year.

SR 7.2 million

Shaded Re-insurance Brokerage

Mr. Ali Al-Subaihin,
Director.

These contracts will be presented before the Ordinary General Assembly scheduled on the 21st of March, 2016 for approval and sanction
for next year. During 2015, no contracts were entered into in which the Company was a party and whereby the CFO or any other person
who may have a relationship with him, has a substantial interest.
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26. Results of Annual Audit to the Effectiveness of an Internal Control System
The Internal Audit Department of the company has implemented the annual internal audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. The
outcome of the annual audits resulted the presence of some observations, which the Internal Audit Department escalated by reports
to Executive Management and Audit Committee. The Board of Directors also perused the most important observations submitted
by the Internal Audit Department in respect of the efficiency and effectiveness of internal control systems adopted in the company.
Accordingly, the Board directed the Executive Management to prepare an action plan to implement the suitable solutions and address
all observations. The outcome of annual internal audit to the efficiency and effectiveness of internal control systems adopted in the
company revealed the adequacy of the prevailing control environment. The Company has an adequate internal control framework which
is satisfactorily operating at all levels providing reasonable assurance about the achievements of business objectives. It also revealed that
the internal control system and risk control applied by Tawuniya was prepared on a sound basis and therefore, implemented efficiently
and effectively and is developed continuously to cope with the volume and requirement of the Company business.
27. Statutory Payments
Following is a statement of the statutory payments effected in 2015 for Zakat, income tax, fees or other dues along with a brief description
to such payments and their reasons:
Statutory payments

Reasons

Amount (in SR million)

Social Insurance

GOSI subscriptions for the company employees.

34

Zakat and Income Tax

Tawuniya's share of Zakat payable pursuant to the regulations of
Zakat and Income Tax Department

44

Supervision Fee

To the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency (SAMA)

34

Supervision Fee

To the Council of Cooperative Health Insurance (CCHI)

49

Customs Duties

--

-

Total

161

28. Investment and Reserve Plans Created Interest for Tawuniya Staff
The Company has a savings plan under which a definite percentage of the employees’ salary is periodically deducted, with Tawuniya
investing this amount through one of the investment funds compatible with the rules of Islamic Shariah. The total number of subscribers
at the end of 2015 reached 156 employees with a subscription amounting to SR12 million. In 2015, the Company continued its home loans
plan for its eligible Saudi employees, where the number of employees granted home loans reached 25 and amounting to SR 24.6 million.
29. External Auditors
The Ordinary General Assembly of the Company held on the 16th of March, 2015 agreed with the Audit Committee’s recommendation
to enter into contract with Al-Bassam & Al-Nemer (PKF) and Mohamed Al-Amri & Co. (BDO), as joint external auditors of Tawuniya
financial statements for the fiscal year ending on the 31st of December, 2015. The BOD did not issue any recommendation to replace the
external auditors approved by the General Assembly during 2015.
30. Accounting Principles Followed on the Financial Statements
As per the request of the Saudi Arabian Monetary Agency (SAMA), effective from 1st of January, 2009 the Company has adapted its
financial statements to be fully compliant with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and from those issued by the
Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA). The Auditor’s report noted that the Company’s financial statements
were prepared in accordance with IFRS and not in accordance with the accounting standards issued by SOCPA. The reason for this has
been clarified with the Capital Market Authority (CMA), which did not ask for any additional information from the Company relating
to this reservation.
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31. Punishment & Penalties Imposed on the Company:
Amount of
Penalty

SR 10,000

Imposing Authority

CMA

Type of Punishment
CMA announced the issuance of this fine
against the Company for the delay in
informing the public in TADAWUL Internet
site about results of the Ordinary General
Assembly held on 16/03/2014 two hours
before the market opens.

Company Feedback
The Company raised an objection against this
violation as it submitted the announcement
at TADAWUL Internet site two hours before
the market opens. Some modifications were
asked leading to the delay in publishing the
announcement. However, CMA disregarded
this objection.

32. Statements and declarations:
A. The Company for Cooperative Insurance (Tawuniya) announces that:
••

During 2015, there are no loans (whether payable on demand or otherwise) likewise there are no debts payable by the company or
its subsidiaries and the company did not pay any amount in settlement of loans.

••

There are no convertible debt instruments, contractual securities, options, warrants or similar rights issued or granted by the
Company during 2015, and there is no consideration received by the Company against this.

••

There are no conversion or subscription rights under any convertible dept instruments, contractual securities, options, warrants or
similar rights issued or granted by the Company during 2015.

••

There is no redemption, purchase, or cancellation by the Company or its subsidiaries of any redeemable debt instruments or the
amount of such securities outstanding.

B. The Company for Cooperative Insurance (Tawuniya) states that:
••

Proper books of accounts and principles have been maintained.

••

The system of internal control is sound in design and effectively implemented.

••

There are no significant doubts concerning the Company’s ability to continue as an ongoing concern.

Conclusion:
The Board of Directors’ (BOD) expresses its sincere gratitude and appreciation to our esteemed customers for the invaluable confidence.
In addition, the Board expresses its deepest thanks and appreciation to all shareholders.

Fringed Lavender

Description:	Fringed Lavender is a species of flowering plant in the Lamiaceae
family. A plant that consists of 39 types growing up to 60 cm
(24 in) tall, it has greyish-green, lined or lance-shaped leaves
with rough edges and a lightly woolly texture. The long-lasting,
narrow spikes of purple flowers, topped with pale violet bracts,
first appear in late spring.

Independent Auditor’s Report

In our opinion
the financial
statements
taken as a
whole, present
fairly, in all
material
respects,
the financial
position of the
Company as at
December 31,
2015.
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White Broom

Description:	A shrubby plant, which has thin and flexible branches. In the early
stages of its growth it tends to have a light-green color. Slowly
its color starts to become darker green as it reaches maturity.
It is made up of narrow and elongated leaves that are 10 mm
in length with small flowers the size of 1 cm and roots that
penetrate the soil to a great depth which reaches 20 m deep.

Financial Statements
Statement of financial position as at December 31, 2015

SR ’000

Notes

2015

2014

Assets - Insurance Operations						
Due from shareholders’ operations
Property and equipment, net

4

Investment property

-

46,139

312,251

273,860

9,861

9,861

Investment in associate

5(i)

13,602

9,558

Available-for-sale investments

6(i)

3,212,756

2,869,000

Prepaid expenses and other assets

7

511,562

429,017

Deferred policy acquisition costs

8

209,244

173,633

1,495,909

1,200,247

Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims

8,9

Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums

8

629,974

443,940

Receivables, net

10

1,943,579

1,529,113

Cash and cash equivalents

12

761,868

700,550

9,100,606

7,684,918

46,326

-

Total assets - Insurance operations

Assets - Shareholders
Due from insurance operations
Investment in associates

5(ii)

80,402

79,843

Available-for-sale investments

6(ii)

2,163,964

2,047,555

14,959

5,607

Accrued investment income
Statutory deposit

11

100,000

100,000

Cash and cash equivalents

12

62,855

20,583

Total assets – Shareholders

2,468,506

2,253,588

Total assets

11,569,112

9,938,506

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SR ’000

Notes

2015

2014

100,176

46,895

1,394,844

1,296,263

Due to shareholders' operations

46,326

-

Reserve for Takaful activities

13,467

16,340

11,211

11,211

2,850,367

2,662,501

Insurance Operations Liabilities and Surplus
Liabilities - Insurance operations:
Surplus distribution payable
Claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities

Reserve for discontinued operations
Gross outstanding claims and reserves

14

15
8, 16

Unearned commission income

8

51,024

41,554

Gross unearned premiums

8

4,233,561

3,290,900

502,579

313,900

9,203,555

7,679,564

Fair value reserve for available-for-sale investments

(102,949)

5,354

Total liabilities and surplus - Insurance operations

9,100,606

7,684,918

-

46,139

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

1,689

1,434

Dividends payable

5,643

5,014

152,106

124,626

159,438

177,213

Reinsurers’ balances payable
Total liabilities - Insurance operations
Surplus - Insurance operations:

Liabilities And Equity - Shareholders
Shareholders’ liabilities:
Due to insurance operations

Zakat

17

Total liabilities - Shareholders
Shareholders’ equity:
Share capital

18

1,000,000

1,000,000

Legal reserve

19

883,465

763,779

Fair value reserve for available-for-sale investments

(56,861)

163,874

Retained earnings

482,464

148,722

Total Shareholders’ equity

2,309,068

2,076,375

Total Shareholders’ liabilities and equity

2,468,506

2,253,588

Total Liabilities, Insurance Operations’ Surplus And Shareholders’ Equity

11,569,112

9,938,506

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Income - Insurance operations and accumulated surplus

SR ’000

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Notes

2015

2014

Gross premiums written

7,545,268

6,207,609

Less: Reinsurance ceded

(1,123,816)

(914,602)

6,421,452

5,293,007

(756,627)

(488,899)

Revenues

Net premiums written

8

Changes in unearned premiums
Net premiums earned

8

5,664,825

4,804,108

Reinsurance commissions

8

93,623

107,171

45,886

50,286

5,804,334

4,961,565

4,999,478

4,574,831

(747,772)

(983,392)

4,251,706

3,591,439

(107,796)

68,013

Other income, net
Total revenues
Costs and Expenses
Gross claims paid
Less: Reinsurance share
Net claims paid

8

Changes in outstanding claims and reserves
Net claims incurred

8

4,143,910

3,659,452

Policy acquisition costs

8

436,588

381,813

Excess of loss expenses

24,427

24,773

Changes in Takaful Reserves

(2,873)

2,696

Other underwriting expenses

134,597

85,257

Manafeth Insurance share

20

49,087

-

Operating and selling expenses

22

473,146

324,846

Other general and administrative expenses

23

83,201

56,909

5,342,083

4,535,746

462,251

425,819

Total costs and expenses
Operating surplus
Investment income, net

21

88,251

43,131

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

30

(17,696)

-

532,806

468,950

(479,525)

(422,055)

53,281

46,895

-

-

(53,281)

(46,895)

-

-

Surplus from insurance operations
Shareholders’ appropriation from surplus

1

Surplus from insurance operations after shareholders’ appropriation
Accumulated surplus, at the beginning of year
Distribution of surplus
Accumulated surplus at the end of the year

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of comprehensive income – Insurance operations

SR ’000

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Notes

Surplus from insurance operations after shareholders’ appropriation

2015

2014

53,281

46,895

(108,303)

(73,217)

(55,022)

(26,322)

Other comprehensive income:
To be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale investments
Total comprehensive loss for the year

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

6 (i)
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Statement of comprehensive income - Shareholders

SR ’000

For the year ended December 31, 2015

Notes

2015

2014

Appropriation of surplus from insurance operations

1

479,525

422,055

Investment income, net

21

199,830

180,412

(36,032)

-

(1,020)

(201)

642,303

602,266

(43,875)

(42,150)

598,428

560,116

(220,735)

(124,309)

377,693

435,807

5.98

5.60

100,000,000

100,000,000

Impairment of available-for-sale investments
Other expenses, net
Income from operations before zakat
Zakat

17

Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income:
To be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

6 (ii)

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in SR)
Weighted average number of shares in issue

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2015

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity

SR ’000

Notes

Share capital

Legal reserve

Fair value
reserve for
available
for sale
investments

Retained
earnings

Total

1,000,000

651,756

288,183

(299,371)

1,640,568

-

-

-

560,116

560,116

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

-

-

(124,309)

-

(124,309)

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

(124,309)

560,116

435,807

Transfer to the legal reserve

-

112,023

-

(112,023)

-

Balance at December 31, 2014

1,000,000

763,779

163,874

148,722

2,076,375

Balance at January 1, 2015

1,000,000

763,779

163,874

148,722

2,076,375

-

-

-

598,428

598,428

-

-

(220,735)

-

(220,735)

-

-

(220,735)

598,428

377,693

19

-

119,686

-

(119,686)

-

13

-

-

-

(145,000)

(145,000)

1,000,000

883,465

(56,861)

482,464

2,309,068

Balance at January 1, 2014

Comprehensive income:
Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income:

Comprehensive income:
Net income for the year
Other comprehensive income:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

6

Total comprehensive income for the year
Transfer to the legal reserve
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:
Dividend distribution
Balance at December 31, 2015

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows - Insurance operations

SR ’000

For the year ended December 31, 2015

2015

2014

Operating activities:
Surplus from Insurance operations after Shareholders’ appropriation

53,281

46,895

479,525

422,055

Adjustments to reconcile surplus from Insurance operations to net cash from operating activities:
Shareholders’ appropriation from surplus
Depreciation

13,938

9,861

Provision / (reversal) for doubtful debts

65,763

(3,678)

-

(24,016)

Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Impairment of available-for-sale investments

17,696

-

Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments

(76,521)

(39,447)

Share of profit from investment in associate

(4,044)

(4,181)

549,638

407,489

(82,545)

(113,789)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses and others assets
Deferred policy acquisition costs
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims

(35,611)

(9,953)

(295,662)

499,639

Reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums

(186,034)

45,388

Receivables, net

(480,229)

(14,937)

Reinsurers’ balances payable

188,679

(10,922)

Unearned premium income

942,661

443,511

9,470

(9,143)

187,866

(431,626)

-

(199)

Reserve for Takaful activities

(2,873)

2,698

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

98,581

7,420

Unearned commission income
Gross outstanding claims and reserves
Reserve for discontinued operations

Due to Shareholders
Net cash from operating activities

(387,060)

21,431

506,881

837,007

3,491,204

1,074,036

(3,884,438)

(2,008,682)

(52,329)

(55,061)

-

61,172

(445,563)

(928,535)

61,318

(91,528)

Investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments
Purchase of available-for-sale investments
Purchase of property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Net cash used in investing activities
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year

700,550

792,078

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year

761,868

700,550

(108,303)

(73,217)

Non-cash supplemental information:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows - Shareholders

SR ’000

For the year ended December 31, 2015

2015

2014

Operating activities:
Income from operations before zakat

642,303

602,266

(479,525)

(422,055)

Adjustments to reconcile income from operations before zakat to net cash from operating activities:
Appropriation of surplus from Insurance operations
Impairment of available-for-sale investments

36,032

-

Gain on sale of available-for-sale investments

(171,890)

(167,469)

Share of profit from investment in associates

(12,981)

(19,523)

13,939

(6,781)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued investment income
Due from Insurance operations
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

(9,352)

(461)

387,060

(21,431)

255

307

Zakat paid

(16,395)

(15,923)

Net cash from / (used in) operating activities

375,507

(44,289)

Investing activities:
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale investments

2,632,386

531,123

(2,833,672)

(668,608)

12,422

3,728

(188,864)

(133,757)

Dividends paid

(144,371)

(137)

Net cash used in financing activities

(144,371)

(137)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

42,272

(178,183)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year

20,583

198,766

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year

62,855

20,583

(220,735)

(124,309)

Purchase of available-for-sale investments
Dividends received from associates
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities:

Non-cash supplemental information:
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale investments

The accompanying notes 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Description:	Desert roses made up of gypsum. They are located along the Red
Sea coast of Saudi Arabia, and in the south of Dhahran and the
eastern region. Desert roses can be found in many different shapes,
sizes and colors depending on the sand properties of the area they
grow in. They are mainly used as decorations and ornaments. They
have been a subject to analysis in King Fahd University early in the
year 1990, results showed that these roses are a mixture of 10%
quartz & gypsum, and 65% with an evaporate.

Desert Rose

Notes to the Financial Statements
December 31, 2015

The financial
statements
have been
prepared in
accordance with
International
Financial
Reporting
Standards
(IFRS).

1- General

2.

The Company for Cooperative Insurance
(the “Company”) is a Saudi joint stock
company established in Riyadh, Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia by Royal Decree Number
M/5 and incorporated on January 18,
1986 corresponding to Jumada Awal 8,
1406H under Commercial Registration
No. 1010061695. The Company’s head
office is located on Thumamah Road
(At Takhassusi) ArRabi District, P.O. Box
86959, Riyadh 11632, Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia.

a) Statement of compliance

The purpose of the Company is to transact
cooperative insurance operations and all
related activities including reinsurance
and agency activities. Its principal lines of
business include medical, motor, marine,
fire, engineering, energy, aviation, takaful
and casualty insurance.

The Company presents its statement of
financial position in order of liquidity.
As required by Saudi Arabian insurance
regulations, the Company maintains
separate accounts for Insurance and
Shareholders’ operations and presents
the financial statements accordingly.
Revenues
and
expenses
clearly
attributable to either activity are recorded
in the respective accounts. The basis of
allocation of other revenue and expenses
from joint operations is as determined by
the management and Board of Directors.

On July 31, 2003 corresponding to Jumada
Thani 2, 1424H the Law on the Supervision
of Cooperative Insurance Companies
(“Insurance Law”) was promulgated
by Royal Decree Number (M/32). On
December 1, 2004 corresponding to
Shawwal 18, 1425H, the Saudi Arabian
Monetary Agency (“SAMA”) as the principal
agency responsible for the application and
administration of the Insurance Law and
its implementing regulations, granted the
Company a license to transact insurance
activities in Saudi Arabia.
The Company conducts the business
and advances funds to the insurance
operations as required. On January 20,
2004 the Company amended its Articles of
Association giving authority to the Board
of Directors to determine the disposition
of the surplus from insurance operations.
On March 20, 2004, the Board of Directors
approved the disposition of the surplus
from insurance operations in accordance
with the implementing regulations issued
by the SAMA, whereby the shareholders
of the Company are to receive 90% of the
annual surplus from insurance operations
and the policyholders are to receive
the remaining 10%. Any deficit arising
on insurance operations is transferred
to the shareholders’ operation in full.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
b) Basis
of
measurement
and
presentation of financial statements
These financial statements are prepared
under the historical cost basis except for
the measurement of fair value of availablefor-sale investments.

The Company’s management has made
an assessment of the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and is satisfied
that the Company has the resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable
future. Furthermore, the management is
not aware of any material uncertainties
that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Accordingly, the financial
statements continue to be prepared on a
going concern basis.
c) Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements have been
presented in Saudi Arabian Riyals (SR),
which is also the functional currency of
the Company. All financial information
presented in Saudi Arabian Riyal has been
rounded to the nearest thousand, except
where otherwise indicated.
d) Fiscal year
The Company follows a fiscal year ending
December 31.
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e) Critical accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

3. Summary of significant accounting policies

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use
of estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Although these estimates and judgments are based on
management’s best knowledge of current events and actions,
actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates.

The accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial
statements are consistent with those used in the previous financial
year, except for the adoption of the following new standards
and other amendments to existing standards mentioned below.
Certain figures for the prior year have been reclassified to conform
to the presentation made in the current year:

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
reporting period. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
Following are the accounting judgments and estimates that are
critical in preparation of these financial statements:
i)

Estimation of the insurance contract reserves

-

Incurred but not reported claims
There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be
considered in the estimate of the liability that the Company
will ultimately pay for such claims. The claims reserves are
sensitive to assumptions made about the number of months
used to average the completion factors and the claims trend.

-

Premium deficiency reserve
Estimation of the premium deficiency for medical business is
highly sensitive to a number of assumptions as to the future
events and conditions. It is based on an expected loss ratio
for the unexpired portion of the risks for written policies. To
arrive at the estimate of the expected loss ratio, the actuary
considers the claims and premiums relationship which is
expected to apply on month to month basis.

ii) Impairment of available-for-sale equity financial assets
The Company determines that available-for-sale equity
financial assets are impaired when there has been a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below
its cost. The determination of what is significant or prolonged
requires judgment. In making this judgment, the Company
evaluates among other factors, the normal volatility in share
price, the financial health of the investee, industry and sector
performance, changes in technology, and operational and
financing cash flow.
iii) Impairment of receivables
A provision for impairment of receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
the receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor,
probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial
reorganization, and default or delinquency in payments are
considered indicators that the receivable is impaired.

New and amended standards issued and adopted
- Amendments to IAS 19 applicable for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 July 2014 is applicable to defined benefit plans
involving contribution from employees and / or third parties.
This provides relief, based on meeting certain criteria’s, from the
requirements proposed in the amendments of 2011 for attributing
employee / third party contributions to periods of service under
the plan benefit formula or on a straight line basis. The current
amendment gives an option, if conditions satisfy, to reduce
service cost in period in which the related service is rendered.
- Annual improvements to IFRS 2010-2012 and 2011-2013 cycle
applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
Standards issued but not yet effective
In addition to the above-mentioned standards, the following
standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective,
up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements
are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective. Further,
the Company has chosen not to early adopt the amendments
and revisions to the International Financial Reporting Standards,
which have been published and are mandatory for compliance for
the Company with effect from future dates.
In addition to the above-mentioned standards, the following
standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective,
up to the date of issuance of the Company’s financial statements
are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective. Further,
the Company has chosen not to early adopt the amendments
and revisions to the International Financial Reporting Standards,
which have been published and are mandatory for compliance for
the Company with effect from future dates.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9, as issued, reflects the first phase of the IASB’s work though
the adoption date is subject to the recently issued Exposure
Draft on the replacement of IAS 39 and applies to classification
and measurement of financial assets and liabilities as defined in
IAS 39. The standard was initially effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, but Amendments to IFRS
9 Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures,
issued in December 2011, moved the mandatory effective date to
1 January 2015.
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However, on 19 November 2013, the IASB issued IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (Hedge Accounting and amendments to IFRS 9)
amending IFRS 9 to include the new general hedge accounting
model. In its February 2014 meeting, the IASB tentatively decided
that IFRS 9 would be mandatorily effective for years ending on or
after 31 December 2018.
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012 – 2014
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012 – 2014 cycle applicable to
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
Disclosure initiative (Amendments to IAS 1)
Amends IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements to address
perceived impediments to preparers exercising their judgments in
presenting the financial reports. It is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
The Company has not early adopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued for early
adoption but is not yet effective.
The significant accounting policies used in preparing these
financial statements are set out below:
a) Revenue Recognition
Recognition of premium and commission revenue
Premiums and commission are recorded in the statement of
income – insurance operations and accumulated surplus over
the terms of the policies to which they relate on a pro-rata basis.
The portion of premiums and commissions that will be earned in
the future is reported as unearned premiums and commissions,
respectively, and is deferred based on the following methods;
•

Last three months from the period in respect of marine cargo;

•

Pre-defined calculation for Engineering class of business
for risks undertaken that extend beyond a single year. In
accordance with this calculation, lower premiums are earned
in the first year which gradually increases towards the end of
the tenure of the policy; and

•

Actual number of days for other lines of business.

Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written
relating to the unexpired period of coverage. The change in the
provision for unearned premium is taken to the statement of
income of insurance operations and accumulated surplus in the
same order that revenue is recognised over the period of risk.
Investment income
Investment income comprise of realized gains and losses on
available-for-sale equity investments, accrued income on
available-for-sale debt securities which is recognized on an
effective yield basis taking account of the principal outstanding
and the commission rate applicable, and share of profit from
associates which is accounted for under the equity method.
Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment
is established.
b) Insurance contracts
Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the
insurer) has accepted significant insurance risk from another party
(the policyholders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders

if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely
affects the policyholders. As a general guideline, the Company
determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by comparing
benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not
occur. Insurance contracts can also transfer financial risk.
Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it
remains an insurance contract for the remainder of its lifetime,
even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period,
unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.
c) Claims
Gross claims consists of benefits and claims paid to policyholders
and third parties, and related loss adjustment expenses, net of
salvage and other recoveries and are charged to the statement of
income – insurance operations and accumulated surplus as incurred
changes in the valuation of the liabilities arising on policyholders’
contracts and internal and external claims handling expenses.
Gross outstanding claims comprise the gross estimated cost
of claims incurred but not settled at the statement of financial
position date together with related claims handling costs, whether
reported by the insured or not. Provisions for reported claims not
paid as of the statement of financial position date are made on the
basis of individual case estimates. In addition, a provision based
on management’s judgment and the Company’s prior experience
is maintained for the cost of settling claims incurred but not
reported including related claims handling costs at the statement of
financial position date. Any difference between the provisions at the
statement of financial position date and settlements and provisions
in the following year is included in the statement of income insurance operations and accumulated surplus for that year.
The outstanding claims are shown on a gross basis and the related
share of the reinsurers is shown separately. Further, the Company
does not discount its liability for unpaid claims as substantially all
claims are expected to be paid within one year of the statement
of financial position date.
d) Salvage and subrogation reimbursement
Some insurance contracts permit the Company to sell (usually
damaged) assets acquired in settling a claim (for example, salvage).
The Company may also have the right to pursue third parties for
payment of some or all costs (for example, subrogation).
Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an allowance in the
measurement of the outstanding claims liability. The allowance is
the amount that can reasonably be recovered from the disposal
of the asset.
Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an allowance
in the measurement of the outstanding claims liability. The
allowance is the assessment of the amount that can be recovered
from the third party.
e) Reinsurance
In the ordinary course of business, the Company cedes insurance
risk. Such reinsurance arrangements provide for greater
diversification of business, allows management to control exposure
to potential losses arising from large risks, and provide additional
capacity for growth. Reinsurance is distributed between treaty,
facultative, stop loss and excess of loss reinsurance contract. An
asset or liability is recorded in the statement of financial position insurance operations’ representing premiums due to or payments
due from reinsurers and the share of losses recoverable from
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reinsurers. Amounts receivable from reinsurance is estimated in
a manner consistent with the claim liability associated with the
insured parties. Reinsurance assets or liabilities are derecognised
when the contractual rights are extinguished or expire or when
the contract is transferred to another party.
An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or
more frequently when an indication of impairment arises during
the reporting period. Impairment occurs when objective evidence
exists as a result of an event that occurred after initial recognition
of the reinsurance asset that the Company may not recover
outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when
the impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from
the reinsurer can be measured reliably. The impairment loss is
recorded in the statement of income - insurance operations and
accumulated surplus.
Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from
its obligations to policyholders. Premiums and claims on assumed
reinsurance are recognised as income and expenses in the same
manner as they would be if the reinsurance were considered direct
business, taking into account the product classification of the
reinsured business.
f) Deferred policy acquisition costs
Commissions and other costs of acquiring insurance contracts
that are primarily related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalized as an intangible asset and are
subsequently amortized over the life of the contract on a basis
consistent with the term of the related policy coverage.
All other acquisition costs are recognized as an expense when
incurred. Amortization is recorded in the statement of income insurance operations and accumulated surplus. Changes in the
expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for
by changing the amortization period and are treated as a change
in accounting estimate.
g) Liability adequacy test
At each statement of financial position date, liability adequacy
tests are performed to ensure the adequacy of the insurance
contracts liabilities net of related deferred policy acquisition
costs. In performing these tests management uses current best
estimates of future contractual cash flows and claims handling
and administration expenses. Any deficiency in the carrying
amounts is immediately charged to the statement of income insurance operations and accumulated losses by establishing a
provision for losses arising from liability adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision) accordingly.
A key feature of the liability adequacy testing is that the effects of
changes in the assumptions on the measurement of the liabilities
and related assets are not symmetrical. Any improvements
in estimates have no impact on the value of the liabilities
and related assets until the liabilities are derecognized, while
significant deterioration in estimates is immediately recognized
to make the liabilities adequate. Where the liability adequacy test
requires the adoption of new best estimate assumptions, such
assumptions (without margins for adverse deviation) are used for
the subsequent measurement of these liabilities.
h) Insurance contracts with discretionary participation feature (DPF)
Premiums that have participated in the earnings of a financial

year (January-December) qualify discretionarily for surplus
distribution. However, in the case of marine cargo, the earned
portion is the premium written between October of the previous
year up to September of the current year while the unearned
portion is the premium written during the last three months of
the current financial year. Some policies with certain conditions
are excluded from the distribution including those policies with a
loss ratio of equal to or greater than 70%.
SAMA Surplus distribution policy govern the distribution of
surplus which is calculated based on the earned premium after
paid and outstanding claims, including incurred but not reported
claims, have been deducted from each policy held by an insured in
as much as the said earned premium relates to the given financial
year.
Surplus is paid to both, direct clients through the Company’s
regional offices, or to indirect clients via brokers, agents, and
banks.
The regulations provide that the payment to the client, broker,
agent, or bank of the share of the surplus is subject to the
settlement of all due outstanding premiums, irrespective of the
year to which such premium relates. This provision stipulates
the offset of any client’s, broker, agent, or bank’s share of surplus
against such due outstanding premiums.
i)

Receivables

Premiums and reinsurance balances receivable are recognised
when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable. Premiums receivable
are stated at gross written premiums receivable from insurance
contracts, less an allowance for any uncollectible amounts.
The carrying value of receivable is reviewed for impairment and
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable, the impairment loss is recorded in
the statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated
losses. Receivable balances are derecognised when criteria for
derecognition of financial assets is met.
Any difference between the provisions at the end of reporting
period and settlements and provisions in the following year is
included in the statement of income - insurance operations and
accumulated surplus.
j)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative
financial assets that are neither classified as held for trading or
held to maturity or loans and receivables, nor are designated at
fair value through profit or loss. Such investments are initially
recorded at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given
including transaction cost and subsequently measured at fair
value. Cumulative changes in fair value of such investments are
recognized in other comprehensive income in the statement of
comprehensive income – insurance operations or shareholders.
Realized gains or losses on sale of these investments are reported
in the related statements of income - insurance operations and
accumulated surplus or statement of comprehensive income shareholders.
Dividends, commission income and foreign currency gain/loss
on available-for-sale investments are recognized in the related
statements of income - insurance operations and accumulated
surplus or statement of comprehensive income – shareholders, as
part of the net investment income / loss.
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Any significant or prolonged decline in fair value of availablefor-sale investments is adjusted for and reported in the related
statement of comprehensive income - insurance operations or
statement of comprehensive income – shareholders, as impairment
charges.
Fair values of available-for-sale investments are based on quoted
prices for marketable securities or estimated fair values. The
fair value of commission-bearing items is estimated based on
discounted cash flows using commission for items with similar
terms and risk characteristics.
For an unquoted equity investment, fair value is determined by
reference to the market value of a similar investment or where
the fair values cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include
the use of mathematical models. The input to these models is
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is
not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair
values.
k) Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value. The method of recognising the
resulting fair value gain or loss depends on whether the derivative
is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the
item being hedged. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair
value is positive and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
Any changes in the fair values of derivatives that are held for
trading purposes are taken directly to the statement of income
- insurance operations or statement of comprehensive income
- shareholders and are included in other assets, if positive, or in
other liabilities, if negative. Fair values are generally obtained by
reference to quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models
and other pricing models, as appropriate.
l)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but not
control over those policies.
The Company’s investment in its associates is accounted for using
the equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in
an associate is initially recognized at cost. The carrying value of
the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the Company’s
share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date.
Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying value
of the investment and is not tested for impairment separately.
The Company’s share of its associates’ post acquisition profits or
losses is recognized in the related statement of income - insurance
operations and accumulated surplus or statement of comprehensive
income – shareholders, using the most recent available financial
statements. The financial statements of the associates are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company.
At each reporting date, the Company determines whether there
is objective evidence that the investment in associate is impaired.
If there is such evidence, the Company calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss in

the statement of income – insurance operations and accumulated
surplus or statement of comprehensive income - shareholders, as
the case may be.
m) De-recognition of financial instruments
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognized
when:
••

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired,
or

••

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
n) Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position only when
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income
and expense is not offset in the statement of comprehensive
income - shareholders and insurance operations unless required
or permitted by any accounting standard or interpretation.
o) Trade date accounting
All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized / derecognized on the trade date (i.e. the date that
the Company commits to purchase or sell the assets). Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require settlement of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place.
p) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a Company of financial
assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that
has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred
‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the Company of financial assets that can be
reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:
••

Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or debtor;

••

A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
payments;

••

It becoming probable that the issuer or debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

Annual Report 2015
Notes to Financial Statements
55

••
••

The disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or
Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flow from a group of
financial assets since the initial recognition of those assets,
although the decrease cannot yet be identified with the
individual financial assets in the Company, including:

Years
Buildings

33

Furniture and fixtures

10

••

adverse changes in the payment status of issuers or
debtors in the Company; or

Computer equipment

4

••

national or local economic conditions at the country of
the issuers that correlate with defaults on the assets.

Vehicles

4

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on a financial
asset exists, the impairment is determined as follows:
••

For assets carried at fair value, impairment is the significant or
prolong decline in the fair value of the financial asset.

••

For assets carried at cost, impairment is the difference
between the cost and the present value of future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset.

••

For assets carried at amortized cost, impairment is based
on estimated cash flows that are discounted at the original
effective commission rate.

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Company assesses at
each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that an
investment or a Company of investments is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’
is evaluated against the original cost of the investment and
‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been
below its original cost. When there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income – is removed from other comprehensive
income and recognised in the statement of income. Impairment
losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or
loss; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
in other comprehensive income.
The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Company evaluates,
among other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value
of an investment is less than its cost.
In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
the impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded
for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as the difference
between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of income.
q) Property and equipment
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. Land is not depreciated.
The cost of other items of property and equipments is depreciated
on the straight line method to allocate the cost over estimated
useful lives, as follows:

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each
reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. The carrying values of
these assets are reviewed for impairment when event or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying
values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are
written down to their recoverable amount.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in the
statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated
surplus.
r) Investment property
Investment property represents land that is held for capital
appreciation purposes. Land is stated at cost less recognized
impairment loss, if any.
s) Impairment of non-financial assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life – for example, land – are
not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
t) Employees’ end-of-service benefits
Employees’ end-of-service benefits are accrued currently and
are payable as a lump sum to all employees under the terms and
conditions of Saudi Labor Regulations on termination of their
employment contracts. The liability is calculated at the current
value of the vested benefits to which the employee is entitled,
should the employee leave at the statement of financial position
date. End-of-service payments are based on employees’ final
salaries and allowances and their cumulative years of service,
as defined by the conditions stated in the laws of Saudi Arabia.
The Company also maintains an employees’ savings plan that
allows specific saving percentages from employees’ salaries, with
contributions by the Company.
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u) Provisions
A provision for incurred liabilities is recognized when the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount
can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future
operating losses.
v) Zakat
The Company is subject to Zakat in accordance with the regulations
of the Department of Zakat and Income Tax (“DZIT”). Zakat is
accrued and charged to the statement of comprehensive income shareholders. Adjustments arising from final zakat assessments, if
any, are recorded in the years when such assessments are received.
w) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and balances
with banks including call and time deposits with less than three
months maturity from the date of acquisition.
x) Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded in Saudi Riyals
at the exchange rate in effect at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated to Saudi Riyals at the rate of exchange ruling at the
statement of financial position date. All differences are taken to
the statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated
surplus or statement of comprehensive income - shareholders. As
the Company’s foreign currency transactions are primarily in US
dollars, foreign exchange gains and losses are not significant.
y) Operating segments
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Company that
is engaged in providing products or services (a business segment),
which is subject to risk and rewards that are different from those
of other segments. For management purposes, the Company is
organized into business units based on their products and services
and has four reportable segments as follows:
•

Medical - coverage for health insurance.

•

Motor insurance.

•

Property and Casualty - coverage for property, engineering,
marine, aviation, energy and general accidents insurance.

•

Manafeth – third party liability insurance for foreign vehicles
and the profit of this segment is shared with other insurance
companies.

Operating segments do not include shareholders’ operations of the
Company.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decisionmaker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the chief executive officer that
makes strategic decisions.
No inter-segment transactions occurred during the year. If any
transaction were to occur, transfer prices between business
segments are set on an arm’s length basis in a manner similar to
transactions with third parties. Segment income, expense and
results will then include those transfers between business segments
which will then be eliminated at the level of the financial statements
of the Company.
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4. Property and Equipment, Net

Buildings

Furniture
and
fixtures

Vehicles

Capital
Work in
progress

Total
2015

Total
2014

53,036

68,019

71,618

97,198

581

116,437

406,889

388,984

Additions

-

-

8,923

12,149

-

31,257

52,329

55,061

Transfers

-

131,283

-

-

-

(131,283)

-

-

Disposals

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(37,156)

53,036

199,302

80,541

109,347

581

16,411

459,218

406,889

January 1

-

4,616

56,926

71,045

442

-

133,029

123,168

Charge for the year

-

3,995

3,301

6,606

36

-

13,938

9,861

December 31

-

8,611

60,227

77,651

478

-

146,967

133,029

December 31, 2015

53,036

190,691

20,314

31,696

103

16,411

312,251

-

December 31, 2014

53,036

63,403

14,692

26,153

139

116,437

-

273,860

SR ’000

Land

Computer
equipment

Cost:
January 1

December 31

Accumulated Depreciation:

Net book value

5. Investments in Associates
i)

Insurance Operations:

SR ’000

2015

2014

Balance, January 1

9,558

5,377

Share of profit (note 21)

4,383

4,181

Dividends received

(339)

-

13,602

9,558

Balance, December 31

The Company’s interest in its associate which is unquoted is as follows along with summarized financial information which is not adjusted
for the percentage ownership:
Najm Insurance Services
SR ’000

Country of
Incorporation

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Profit

% Interest
Held

As of September 30, 2015*

Saudi Arabia

221,836

43,131

215,767

51,568

8%

As of September 30, 2014*

Saudi Arabia

165,145

44,036

245,347

56,529

8%

* Based on latest available management account
The Company has significant influence over the financial and operating policy decision of its associate by way of representation on its board
of directors.
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ii) Shareholders:
SR ’000

2015

2014

Balance, January 1

79,843

64,048

Share of profit (note 21)

19,444

16,246

Dividends received

(12,422)

(3,728)

Unrealized gain on investments

(6,463)

3,277

Balance, December 31

80,402

79,843

The Company’s interest in its associates which are unquoted is as follows along with summarized financial information which is not adjusted
for the percentage ownership:
a) United Insurance Company
SR ’000

Country of
Incorporation

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Profit

% Interest
Held

As of November 30, 2015*

Bahrain

208,492

93,192

70,307

27,890

50%

As of November 30, 2014*

Bahrain

212,422

87,490

64,207

23,144

50%

* Based on latest available management account
b) Waseel Application Services Provider
SR ’000

Country of
Incorporation

Assets

Liabilities

Revenue

Profit

% Interest
Held

As of November 30, 2015 *

Saudi Arabia

51,532

3,941

28,389

12,697

45%

As of November 30, 2014 *

Saudi Arabia

40,481

5,254

24,954

11,300

45%

* Based on latest available management account

6. Available-for-sale Investments
i)

Insurance operations:

Available-for-sale investments of the insurance operations comprise the following:
SR ’000
Local / Regional Money Market and Fixed Income Investments

2015

2014

2,251,025

2,295,303

Local / Regional Equities and Equity Funds

582,916

476,761

Foreign Money Market and Fixed Income Investments

378,815

-

-

96,936

3,212,756

2,869,000

Foreign Equities and Equity Funds
Total

Annual Report 2015
Notes to Financial Statements
59

Movements in available-for-sale investments are as follows:
SR ’000

Quoted securities

Unquoted securities

Total

1,968,124

-

Purchases

2,008,682

-

2,008,682

Disposals

(1,034,589)

-

(1,034,589)

As at January 1, 2014

Changes in fair value of investments

1,968,124

(73,217)

-

(73,217)

As at December 31, 2014

2,869,000

-

2,869,000

As of January 1, 2015

2,869,000

-

2,869,000

Purchases

3,884,438

-

3,884,438

Disposals

(3,414,683)

-

(3,414,683)

Impairment of investments

(17,696)

-

(17,696)

Changes in fair value of investments

(108,303)

-

(108,303)

As at December 31, 2015

3,212,756

-

3,212,756

The above available-for-sale investments include impaired investments with fair value at the year end of SR 26,965 million.
ii) Shareholders:
Shareholders’ available-for-sale investments comprise the following:
SR ’000
Local / Regional Money Market and Fixed Income Investments
Local / Regional Equities and Equity Funds

2015

2014

1,875,194

1,142,237

246,636

290,130

-

311,823

Foreign Money Market and Fixed Income Investments
Foreign Equities and Equity Funds
Total

42,134

303,365

2,163,964

2,047,555

Movements in available-for-sale investments are as follows:
SR ’000

Quoted securities

Unquoted securities

Total

1,716,489

150,421

Purchases

665,017

14,850

679,867

Disposals

(344,196)

(30,717)

(374,913)

Changes in fair value of investments

(124,309)

-

(124,309)

As at December 31, 2014

1,913,001

134,554

2,047,555

As at January 1, 2015

1,913,001

134,554

2,047,555

Purchases / transfers

2,829,387

4,285

2,833,672

(2,409,580)

(50,916)

(2,460,496)

As at January 1, 2014

Disposals

1,866,910

Impairment of Investments

(36,032)

-

(36,032)

Changes in fair value of investments

(175,137)

(45,598)

(220,735)

As at December 31, 2015

2,121,639

42,325

2,163,964

The above available-for-sale investments include impaired investments with fair value at the year end of SR 51,914 million.
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7.

Prepaid expenses and other assets

SR ’000

2015

Prepaid expenses
Other assets
Total

2014

88,479

53,911

423,083

375,106

511,562

429,017

8. Movements in deferred policy acquisition costs, unearned commission income, unearned premiums and outstanding claims
a) Deferred policy acquisition costs
SR ’000

2015

Balance, January 1

173,633

Incurred during the year
Amortized during the year
Balance, December 31

2014
163,680

472,199

391,766

(436,588)

(381,813)

209,244

173,633

b) Unearned commission income
SR ’000

2015

2014

Balance, January 1

41,554

50,697

Commission received during the year

103,093

98,028

Commission earned during the year

(93,623)

(107,171)

51,024

41,554

Balance, December 31

c) Unearned premiums
2015
SR ’000

Gross

Reinsurers’ share

Net

3,290,901

(443,941)

2,846,960

Premiums written during the year

7,545,268

(1,123,816)

6,421,452

Premiums earned during the year

(6,602,608)

937,783

(5,664,825)

4,233,561

(629,974)

3,603,587

Gross

Reinsurers’ share

Net

Balance, January 1

2,847,389

(489,328)

2,358,061

Premiums written during the year

6,207,609

(914,602)

5,293,007

Premiums earned during the year

(5,764,097)

959,989

(4,804,108)

3,290,901

(443,941)

2,846,960

Balance, January 1

Balance, December 31

2014
SR ’000

Balance, December 31

Annual Report 2015
Notes to Financial Statements
61

d) Outstanding claims and reserves

2015

SR ’000
Outstanding claims
Salvage and subrogation
Incurred but not reported
Premium deficiency reserve
Balance, January 1

2014

Reinsurers
share

Gross

Net

Gross

Reinsurers
share

Net

1,642,524

(1,200,247)

442,277

2,118,797

(1,699,886)

418,911

(65,781)

-

(65,781)

(77,995)

-

(77,995)

1,043,468

-

1,043,468

779,359

-

779,359

42,290

-

42,290

273,966

-

273,966

2,662,501

(1,200,247)

1,462,254

3,094,127

(1,699,886)

1,394,241

(4,999,478)

747,772

(4,251,706)

(4,574,831)

983,392

(3,591,439)

Claims incurred

5,187,344

(1,043,434)

4,143,910

4,143,205

(483,753)

3,659,452

Balance, December 31

2,850,367

(1,495,909)

1,354,458

2,662,501

(1,200,247)

1,462,254

Outstanding claims

Claims paid

1,860,957

(1,495,909)

365,048

1,642,524

(1,200,247)

442,277

Salvage and subrogation

(88,643)

-

(88,643)

(65,781)

-

(65,781)

Incurred but not reported

1,078,053

-

1,078,053

1,043,468

-

1,043,468

Premium deficiency reserve
Total

-

-

-

42,290

-

42,290

2,850,367

(1,495,909)

1,354,458

2,662,501

(1,200,247)

1,462,254

9. Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims, net
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims comprise net amounts due from the following:
SR ’000
Reinsurers’ share of insurance liabilities
Impairment provision

2015

2014

1,497,059

1,201,397

(1,150)

(1,150)

1,495,909

1,200,247

Substantially all of the amounts due from reinsurers are expected to be received within twelve months of the date of the statement of
financial position. Reinsurers share of outstanding claims are calculated in proportion to the related risk distribution pattern.
Amounts due from reinsurers relating to claims already paid by the Company are included in receivables, net (Note 10).
10. Receivables, net
Receivables comprise net amounts due from the following:
SR ’000
Policyholders
Agents/Brokers
Related party (Note 25)
Reinsurers’ balance receivable

2015

2014

1,451,973

1,167,451

293,446

186,166

145,601

106,603

1,891,020

1,460,220

202,269

158,459

Administrative service plan

18,436

12,817

2,111,725

1,631,496

Provision for doubtful debts

(168,146)

(102,383)

Total

1,943,579

1,529,113
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Movement in provision for doubtful debts during the year was as follows:
SR ’000
Balance, January 1
Charge / (reversal) for the year (note 22)
Balance, December 31

2015

2014

102,383

106,061

65,763

(3,678)

168,146

102,383

As at December 31, the ageing of receivables is as follows:
Total

Neither past
due nor
impaired

Less than 30 days

30 - 60 days

60 - 90 days

Above 90 days

Past due and
Impaired

2015

2,111,725

875,837

376,506

144,751

21,050

152,778

540,803

2014

1,631,496

1,035,945

162,146

98,000

15,258

150,102

170,045

SR ’000

Past due but not impaired

Receivables comprise a large number of customers and insurance companies mainly within the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia as well as insurance
companies and reinsurance companies mainly in Europe. Receivables include an amount of SR 23 million (2014: SR 82 million) due in
foreign currencies, mainly in US dollars. The Company’s terms of business require amounts to be paid within 30 to 90 days of the date of
the transaction. Arrangements with reinsurers normally require settlement within a certain agreed period.
With the exception of balances amounting to SR 720 million (2014: SR 137 million) due from companies wholly or significantly owned by
the Government and one major reinsurer of SR 193 million (2014: SR 87 million), no individual or company balances constitute more than
4% (2014: 6%) of the receivables as at December 31, 2015. In addition, the five largest non-Government customers account for 12% (2014:
25%) of outstanding accounts receivable as at December 31, 2015.
11. Statutory deposit
In compliance with Article 58 of the Insurance Implementing Regulations of SAMA, the Company has deposited 10% percent of its share
capital, amounting to SR 100 million in a bank designated by SAMA. The statutory deposit is maintained with the National Commercial
Bank and can be withdrawn only with the consent of SAMA.
12. Cash and cash equivalents
i)

Insurance operations:

SR ’000

2015

2014

Cash in hand and at banks

579,247

467,868

Call and time deposits

182,621

232,682

761,868

700,550

SR ’000

2015

2014

Cash in hand and at banks

46,788

ii) Shareholders:

Call and time deposits

5,015

16,067

15,568

62,855

20,583

Call and time deposits are maintained with financial institutions. The deposits for insurance operations are maturing on February 03, 2016.
These earn commission at an average rate of 1.8% per annum as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 1% per annum).

Annual Report 2015
Notes to Financial Statements
63

13. Insurance operations’ surplus and dividends declared
Insurance Operations’ surplus
The insurance operations’ invests its surplus funds in investments as disclosed in Notes 5 and 6. All of these investments are classified as
available-for-sale and measured at market value except for investment in associates. Changes in the fair value of these investments at
December 31, 2015 are not considered as part of the net surplus available for distribution to policyholders. At the time such investments
are sold or gains and losses are realized, they will be included in the statement of income - insurance operations and accumulated surplus.
Dividends declared
Net income from shareholders’ activities is distributed in accordance with the Articles of Association and resolutions of the General
Assembly. On February 21, 2016, corresponding to Jumadah al-Awwal 14, 1437 the Company’s board of directors proposed to pay a
dividend for the year ended December 31, 2015 of SR 1 per share totalling SR 100 million (2014: SR 145 million) to its shareholders. The
proposed dividend will be put to the shareholders for their approval in the General Assembly meeting to be held on March 21, 2016,
corresponding to Jumadah Al-Thani 17, 1437.
14. Claims payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities
SR ’000

2015

2014

Payables to policyholders

656,252

717,216

Payable - department of zakat & income tax

339,055

304,667

69,692

73,111

Marketing representative commissions
Employee end of service benefits

81,349

66,938

139,880

82,953

11,749

9,651

Provision for leave encashment

15,934

12,743

Manafeth share of profit distribution payable

49,087

-

Accrued expenses
Employees’ savings plan

Other liabilities

31,846

28,984

1,394,844

1,296,263

2015

2014

15. Reserve for discontinued operations
The reserve for discontinued operations comprise the following in relation to one of the Company’s
divisions which was discontinued during 1998:
SR ’000
Outstanding claims

3,203

3,203

Reserve for losses

8,008

8,008

Total

11,211

11,211

The reserve for losses represents an estimate by management of the net losses which will arise
from the run off of this business. The movement in the reserve for losses is set out below:
SR ’000
Balance, January 1
Net claims incurred during the year
(Recovery) / addition from reserve for losses
Balance, December 31

2015

2014

8,008

8,397

-

(173)

-

(216)

8,008

8,008
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The results of the discontinued operations are as follows:
SR ’000

2015

2014

Revenue

-

Cost and expenses

-

-

Net claims incurred

-

(216)

Total costs and expenses

-

(216)

(Recovery)/ addition from discontinued operations

-

(216)

16. Claims development table
The following reflects the cumulative incurred claims, including both claims notified and incurred but not reported for each successive accident year
at each statement of financial position date, together with the cumulative payments to date. The development of insurance liabilities provides a
measure of the Company’s ability to estimate the ultimate value of the claims.
The Company aims to maintain adequate reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse future claims experience and
developments. As claims develop and the ultimate cost of claims becomes more certain, adverse claims experiences will be eliminated which results
in the release of reserves from earlier accident years. In order to maintain adequate reserves, the Company transfers much of this release to the current
accident year reserves when the development of claims is less mature and there is much greater uncertainty attached to the ultimate cost of claims.
Claims triangulation analysis is by accident years spanning a number of financial years.
2015
Accident year
SR ’000
Estimate of ultimate claims cost:
At the end of accident year
One year later

2010 &
Earlier

2011

2012

2,521,919

2,971,986

4,917,107

3,669,909

16,197,612

2,914,308

3,978,907

5,596,818

4,120,395

5,522,532

15,831,760

2,896,367

4,016,792

Three years later

15,821,523

2,910,080

4,021,777

Four years later

15,616,226

2,908,120

Five years later

15,592,786

Cumulative payments to date
Liability recognized in statement of financial position

2014

15,976,733

Two years later

Current estimate of cumulative claims

2013

15,592,786

2,908,120

(15,412,355) (2,857,827)
180,431

50,293

4,021,777

5,522,532

4,120,395

2015

Total

4,862,126

4,862,126

37,027,736

(3,967,181) (5,350,381) (3,832,149) (3,746,886) (35,166,779)
54,596

172,151

288,246

1,115,240

Salvage and Subrogation

1,860,957
(88,643)

Incurred but not reported claims

1,078,053

Outstanding claims and reserves

2,850,367

2014
Accident year
SR ’000
Estimate of ultimate claims cost:

2009 &
Earlier

2010

2011

2012

2013

At the end of accident year

13,650,239

2,369,636

2,521,919

2,971,986

4,917,107

One year later

13,607,097

2,527,355

2,914,308

3,978,907

5,596,818

Two years later

13,670,257

2,488,796

2,896,367

4,016,792

Three years later

13,342,964

2,481,495

2,910,080

Four years later

13,340,028

2,492,869

Five years later

13,123,357

Current estimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date
Liability recognized in the statement of financial position
Salvage and Subrogation
Incurred but not reported claims
Premium Deficiency reserve
Outstanding claims and reserves

13,123,357

2,492,869

2,910,080

4,016,792

5,596,818

2014

Total

3,669,909

3,669,909 31,809,825

(12,943,218) (2,457,226) (2,843,578) (3,930,954) (5,013,419) (2,978,906) (30,167,301)
180,139

35,643

66,502

85,838

583,399

691,003

1,642,524
(65,781)
1,043,468
42,290
2,662,501
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17. Zakat
The current year’s provision is based on the following:
SR ’000
Share capital

2015

2014

1,000,000

1,000,000

Reserves, opening provisions and other adjustments

1,007,026

820,524

Book value of long term assets

(1,025,674)

(737,498)

981,352

1,083,026

Zakatable income for the year

773,636

602,974

1,754,988

1,686,000

Zakat base

As the zakat base for the year is higher than the zakatable income, the zakat for the year is calculated at 2.5% on the zakat base for the year.
The differences between the financial and the zakatable results are mainly due to provisions which are not allowed in the calculation of zakatable income.
The movement in the zakat provision for the year was as follows:
SR ’000
Balance, January 1

2015

2014

124,626

98,399

Provided during the year

43,875

42,150

Payments during the year

(16,395)

(15,923)

152,106

124,626

Balance, December 31

Status of Assessment
The Company has filed Zakat returns with the Department of Zakat and Income tax (DZIT) for the years from 2005 to 2014 but the final
assessments have not been raised yet.
Status of Appeal
The Company has filed an appeal against the assessment of DZIT for the year 2005-2006 which is raised to Board of Grievances.
18. Share capital
The authorized, issued and paid up capital of the Company is SR 1 billion at December 31, 2015 (2014: SR 1 billion) consisting of 100
million shares of SR 10 each.
2015
SR ’000

Authorized and issued
No. of Shares

SR’000

Paid up
SR’000

Held by the public

53,370,407

533,704

533,704

Public Pension Agency

23,790,148

237,901

237,901

General Organization for Social Insurance

22,839,445

228,395

228,395

100,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000

2014
SR ’000

Authorized and issued
No. of Shares

SR’000

Paid up
SR’000

Held by the public

53,370,407

533,704

533,704

Public Pension Agency

23,790,148

237,901

237,901

General Organization for Social Insurance

22,839,445

228,395

228,395

100,000,000

1,000,000

1,000,000
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19. Legal reserve
In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and in compliance with Article 70 (2g) of the Insurance Implementing
Regulations of SAMA, the Company allocates 20% of net shareholders’ income each year to the legal reserve until this reserve equals to
100% of the paid capital. The legal reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders until liquidation of the Company.
20. Manafeth shared agreement
The Company has signed Manafeth shared agreement effective from 1 January 2015 with 25 insurance companies on the 13 January 2015
with regards to Manafeth third party liability motor insurance.
The main terms of the above mentioned agreement are the following:
••

The Company obtains 15% management fee of the net result of the Manafeth portfolio;

••

The Company obtains 4.25% of Manafeth’s gross premiums written to cover the related indirect expenses; and

••

The net result of the Manafeth portfolio after deducting the two above mentioned items is due to be shared equally by the Company
and its related insurers.

21. Investment income, net
Insurance Operations
SR ’000

2015

2014

Available-for-sale:
- Dividend income

4,906

3,707

- Commission income

6,459

16,777

- Realized gain on sale (Note 30)

76,521

18,963

(4,018)

(497)

- Investment fees
Share of profit from investment in associate (Note 5(i))

4,383

4,181

88,251

43,131

5,088

5,037

- Commission income

2,557

15,110

- Foreign currency exchange

2,910

5,056

- Realized gain on sale (Note 30)

171,890

142,282

- Investment fees

(2,059)

(3,319)

19,444

16,246

199,830

180,412

2015

2014

335,516

267,793

5,118

13,995

Insurance, utilities and maintenance

11,661

12,231

Advertising

17,603

6,872

Investment income, net
Shareholders
Available-for-sale:
- Dividend income

Share of profit from investment in associates (Note 5(ii))
Investment income, net

22. Operating and selling expenses
SR ’000
Salaries and benefits
Rent

Training and education

4,911

2,982

Depreciation

6,629

4,536

Communications

3,390

1,606

Office supplies and printing
Provision (Reversal of provision) for doubtful receivables (note 10)
Others

1,174

1,147

65,763

(3,678)

21,381

17,362

473,146

324,846
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23. Other general and administrative expenses
SR ’000

2015

Rent

2014

1,873

16,587

Insurance, utilities and maintenance

12,028

9,097

Professional fees

19,535

6,186

Communications

7,623

5,586

Depreciation

7,309

5,325

Office supplies and printing

2,286

3,165

Training and education

7,486

2,290

Tax and license

9,762

3,000

Indirect cost charge of Manafeth

8,302

-

Others

6,997

5,673

83,201

56,909

24. Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated by dividing the net income for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
by 100 million shares.
25. Related party transactions and balances
The following are the details of the major related party transactions during the year and the related balances at December 31:

Amount of transactions for the
year ended
SR ’000

2015

2014

Balance receivable /
(payable) as at
2015

2014

Major shareholders
Amount of claims paid to hospitals owned by major shareholders

62,286

16,147

(4,259)

(2,877)

Medical insurance premiums written

39,996

42,442

3,277

3,432

Associates
Claims management

792

-

520

-

1,852

5,314

-

-

Najm Insurance Services - fees

41,291

21,958

4,252

(4,778)

United Insurance Co. fees and claims, net

8,490

7,752

3,663

2,425

136,691

108,286

168,199

103,171

Rent expenses paid

Entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by related parties.
Medical insurance premiums written

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board of Directors is entitled each year to remuneration up to 10% of the
remaining profit from shareholders’ operations, as defined, based on a decision by the General Assembly.
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Remuneration and compensation of BOD Members and Top Executives
The following table shows the annual salaries, remuneration and allowances obtained by the Board members and five top executives for the
year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014:

SR ’000

BOD members
(Executives)

BOD members (NonExecutive)

Top Executives including the
CEO and COO

2015

Salaries and compensation

-

-

5,397

Allowances

-

744

1,889

Motivational plans

-

-

365

1,794

3,250

-

1,843

2,538

12,744

Annual remuneration
End of service indemnities
Total

-

2014

-

Salaries and compensation

-

-

3,995

Allowances

-

1,565

1,495

Motivational plans

-

-

657

End of service indemnities

-

-

2,229

Total

-

1,565

8,376

26. Fair values of financial instruments
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length
transaction. The Company’s financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, investments and accrued income and its financial
liabilities consist of payables and accrued expenses.
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities are not materially different from their carrying values at the financial position date.
The fair value of derivatives held by the Company as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are immaterial to the Company’s financial statements.
Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments:
Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

Annual Report 2015
Notes to Financial Statements
69

The table below presents the financial instruments at their fair values as at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and based on the fair value hierarchy:
SR ’000

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3

Total

2015

Available-for- sale financial assets
- Policyholders

1,655,211

-

1,557,545

3,212,756

- Shareholders

1,396,448

-

767,516

2,163,964

3,051,659

-

2,325,061

5,376,720

- Policyholders

1,747,130

-

1,121,870

2,869,000

- Shareholders

1,638,000

-

409,555

2,047,555

3,385,130

-

1,531,425

4,916,555

Total
2014

Available-for-sale financial assets

Total

There were no transfers between the levels of fair value hierarchies during the year.
Level 3 investments comprise investment in Private Equity Funds and debt instruments. The valuation technique used to measure Private
Equity Funds is NAV (net assets value). The fair value of Private Equity Funds computed is based on the latest reported net assets value
as at the statement of financial position date. Further, the debt instruments are measured at the fair value based on the discounted
cash flow technique, which, as per the management, is the best estimate of the exit price i.e. fair value. Management tests all such
investments for impairment annually.
Reconciliation of recurring fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
Total gain or loss recognized in
Other
comprehensive
income

Balance
January 1

Purchases

Sales

Insurance operations

1,121,870

1,695,504

(1,264,323)

21,940

(17,446)

1,557,545

Shareholders

409,555

1,128,785

(761,926)

56,539

(65,437)

767,516

1,531,425

2,824,289

(2,026,249)

78,479

(82,883)

2,325,061

Insurance operations

365,624

1,366,710

(612,120)

14,902

(13,246)

1,121,870

Shareholders

245,421

366,200

(208,717)

11,860

(5,209)

409,555

Total

611,045

1,732,910

(820,837)

26,762

(18,455)

1,531,425

SR ’000

Profit or loss

Balance
December 31

December 31, 2015

Total
December 31, 2014

27. Operating segments
Consistent with the Company’s internal reporting process; operating segments have been approved by management in respect of the
Company’s activities, assets and liabilities. Information disclosed in the note is based on current reporting to the chief operating decision
maker. Operating segments do not include shareholders’ operations of the Company.
Segment assets do not include insurance operations’ property and equipment, prepayments and other assets, receivables and cash and
cash equivalents. Accordingly, they are included in unallocated assets. Segment liabilities do not include due to shareholders’ operations,
reinsurance balances payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities. Accordingly, they are included in unallocated liabilities.
These unallocated assets and liabilities (including the related charges for provision for doubtful debts on premiums receivable and
depreciation on the property and equipments) are not reported to chief operating decision maker under related segments and are
monitored on a centralized basis.
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For the year ended December 31, 2015

SR ’000

Medical

Motor

Property &
casualty

Manafeth

Total

Operating Segments
Gross premiums written:
Compulsory

4,111,028

-

-

-

-

801,778

-

-

-

-

Total gross premiums written

4,912,806

1,294,864

195,352

1,142,246

7,545,268

Net premiums written

4,798,758

1,294,864

195,352

132,478

6,421,452

Net premiums earned

4,287,836

1,080,815

157,550

138,624

5,664,825

194

(4,391)

-

97,820

93,623

(3,313,344)

(751,661)

(53,818)

(25,087)

(4,143,910)

(225,775)

(141,696)

(24,129)

(44,988)

(436,588)
(24,427)

Non - compulsory

Reinsurance commissions
Net claims incurred
Policy acquisition costs
Excess of loss expenses
Changes in Takaful Reserve
Other underwriting expenses
General, administrative, operating and
selling expenses
Profit from Insurance Operations

-

(12,612)

(2,330)

(9,485)

2,873

-

-

-

2,873

(92,206)

(13,782)

(9,986)

(18,623)

(134,597)

(329,040)

(124,521)

(17,422)

(85,364)

(556,347)

330,538

32,152

49,865

52,897

465,452

Investment gains

88,251

Other income, net

45,886

Impairment of available-for-sale investments

(17,696)

Manafeth Insurance share

(49,087)

Surplus from Insurance

532,806

For the year ended December 31, 2014

SR ’000

Medical

Motor*

Property & casualty

Total

Operating Segments
Gross premiums written:
Compulsory

3,522,741

-

-

632,330

-

-

-

4,155,071

1,043,193

1,009,345

6,207,609

Net premiums written

4,112,144

1,043,160

137,703

5,293,007

Net premiums earned

3,640,605

1,021,512

141,991

4,804,108

1,638

2,361

103,172

107,171

(2,931,207)

(663,372)

(64,873)

(3,659,452)

(199,022)

(141,259)

(41,532)

(381,813)

Excess of loss expenses

(2,293)

(13,283)

(9,197)

(24,773)

Changes in Takaful Reserve

(2,696)

-

-

(2,696)

Other underwriting expenses

(67,941)

(6,750)

(10,566)

(85,257)

(179,278)

(121,188)

(81,289)

(381,755)

259,806

78,021

37,706

375,533

Non- compulsory
Total gross premiums written

Reinsurance commissions
Net claims incurred
Policy acquisition costs

General, administrative, operating and
selling expenses
Profit from Insurance Operations

-

Investment gains

43,131

Other income, net

50,286

Surplus from Insurance Operations

*

468,950

Manafeth result is included in the motor operating segment. It is not presented separately as shown in 2015 operating segments as
it totally belong to the company.
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For the year ended December 31, 2015

SR ’000

Medical

Motor

Manafeth

Property &
casualty

-

529,268

629,974

Total

Operating Segments
Assets - Insurance operations
Reinsurer’s share of unearned premium
Reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims, net
Deferred policy acquisition costs

89,377

11,329

224

16,082

-

1,479,603

1,495,909

120,725

64,964

1,600

21,955

209,244

Investments

3,236,219

Receivables, net

1,943,579

Unallocated assets

1,585,681

Total assets

9,100,606

Liabilities and surplus - Insurance operations
Unearned premium income
Gross outstanding claims and reserves
Unearned commission income

2,860,161

695,582

37,802

640,016

4,233,561

906,262

278,952

24,542

1,640,611

2,850,367

6,241

24

-

44,759

51,024

Reserve for Takaful activities

13,467

Unallocated liabilities and surplus

1,952,187

Total liabilities and surplus

9,100,606

As at December 31, 2014

SR ’000

Medical

Property &
casualty

Motor

Total

Operating Segments
Assets - Insurance operations

Reinsurer’s share of unearned premiums
Reinsurer’s share of outstanding claims, net
Deferred policy acquisition costs

8,066

3,854

432,020

443,940

246

27,201

1,172,800

1,200,247

107,231

47,880

18,522

173,633

Investments

2,888,419

Receivables, net

1,529,113

Unallocated assets

1,449,566

Total assets

7,684,918

Liabilities and surplus - Insurance operations
Unearned premium income

2,267,928

474,058

548,914

3,290,900

Gross outstanding claims and reserves

1,077,703

236,956

1,347,842

2,662,501

4,412

64

37,078

41,554

16,340

-

-

16,340

Unearned commission income
Reserve for Takaful activities
Unallocated liabilities and surplus

1,673,623

Total liabilities and surplus

7,684,918
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28. Risk management
(a) Insurance risk
The risk under an insurance contract is the risk that an insured event will occur including the uncertainty of the amount and timing of
any resulting claim. The principal risk the Company faces under such contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed the
carrying amount of insurance liabilities. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims, actual benefits paid being greater
than originally estimated and subsequent development of long-term claims.
The variability of risks is improved by diversification of risk of loss to a large portfolio of insurance contracts as a more diversified portfolio is
less likely to be affected across the board by change in any subset of the portfolio, as well as unexpected outcomes. The variability of risks is
also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting strategy and guidelines as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements.
Significant portion of reinsurance business ceded is placed on a quota share basis with retention limits varying by product lines. Amounts
recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the assumptions used for ascertaining the underlying policy
benefits and are presented in the statement of financial position as reinsurance assets.
Although the Company has reinsurance arrangements, it is not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders and thus a credit
exposure exists with respect to reinsurance ceded, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to meet its obligations assumed under such
reinsurance arrangements.
The insurance claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions mentioned in Note 2. It has not been possible to quantify the
sensitivity of certain assumptions such as legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process.
(b) Reinsurance risk
In order to minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the Company, in the normal course of business, enters into agreements
with other parties for reinsurance purposes.
To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, the Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers
and monitors concentrations of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers.
Reinsurers are selected using the following parameters and guidelines set by the Company’s Board of Directors and Reinsurance
Committee. The criteria may be summarized as follows:
-

Minimum acceptable credit rating by recognized rating agencies (e.g. S&P) that is not lower than BBB or equivalent

-

Reputation of particular reinsurance companies

-

Existing or past business relationship with the reinsurer.

The exception to this rule is in respect of local companies who do not carry any such credit rating. This, however, is limited to those
companies registered and approved under local insurance regulatory framework.
Furthermore, the financial strength and managerial and technical expertise as well as historical performance of the reinsurers, wherever
applicable, are thoroughly reviewed by the Company and agreed to pre-set requirements of the Company’s Board of Directors and
Reinsurance Committee before approving them for exchange of reinsurance business.
Reinsurance ceded contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders and as a result the Company remains liable for
the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the obligations under the reinsurance agreements. As
shown in Note 9, the Company has reduced its claims payable by the expected recoveries from reinsurers as at December 31, 2015 to SR 1.5
billion (2014: SR 1.2 billion). No single reinsurer accounts for more than 22% of these expected recoveries at December 31, 2015 (2014: 21%).
Frequency and severity of claims
The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by several factors like natural disasters, flood, environmental and economical,
atmospheric disturbances, concentration of risks, civil riots etc. The Company manages these risk through the measures described above.
The Company has limited its exposure to catastrophic and riot events by use of reinsurance arrangements.
Concentration of insurance risk
The Company monitors concentration of insurance risks primarily by class of business. The major concentration lies in medical.
The Company also monitors concentration of risk by evaluating multiple risks covered in the same geographical location. For flood or
earthquake risk, a complete city is classified as a single location. For fire and property risk a particular building and neighboring buildings,
which could be affected by a single claim incident, are considered as a single location. Similarly, for marine risk, multiple risks covered
in a single vessel voyage are considered as a single risk while assessing concentration of risk. The Company evaluates the concentration
of exposures to individual and cumulative insurance risks and establishes its reinsurance policy to reduce such exposures to levels
acceptable to the Company.
Since the Company operates majorly in Saudi Arabia, hence, all the insurance risks relate to policies written in Saudi Arabia.
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Sources of uncertainty in estimation of future claim payments
The key source of estimation uncertainty at the statement of financial position date relates to valuation of outstanding claims, whether reported
or not, and includes expected claims settlement costs. Considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to
policyholders arising from claims made under insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors
involving varying and possibly significant degrees of judgment and uncertainty and actual results may differ from management’s estimates
resulting in future changes in estimated liabilities. Qualitative judgments are used to assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in
the future, for example one-off occurrence, changes in market factors such as public attitude to claiming and economic conditions. Judgment is
further used to assess the extent to which external factors such as judicial decisions and government legislation affect the estimates.
In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the statement of financial position
date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at the statement of financial position date. The details
of estimation of claim related reserves are given under Notes 2(e) and 3(c) to the financial statements.
Process used to decide on assumptions
The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to result in neutral reasonable
estimates of the most likely or expected outcome. The nature of the business makes it very difficult to predict with certainty the likely
outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. Each notified claim is assessed on a separate, case by case basis
with due regard to claim circumstances, information available from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Case
estimates are reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is available.
The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of settling claims already
notified to the Company, in which case information about the claim event is available. The estimation process takes into account the
past claims reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs.
The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions (unearned premium reserve and premium
deficiency reserve in result of liability adequacy test) would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses likely to
occur on the unexpired policies as at the statement of financial position date. The expected future liability is determined using estimates
and assumptions based on the experience during the expired period of the contracts and expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable. The details of estimation of premium deficiency reserve are given under Notes 2(e) and 3(g) to the financial statements.
Sensitivity analysis
The Company believes that the claim liabilities under insurance contracts outstanding at the year end are adequate. However, these
amounts are not certain and actual payments may differ from the claims liabilities provided in the financial statements. The insurance
claim liabilities are sensitive to the various assumptions. It has not been possible to quantify the sensitivity of specific variable such as
legislative changes or uncertainty in the estimation process. However, the sensitivity to changes in claim reserves net of reinsurance by
10% percent is analysed separately for each class of business while keeping all other assumptions constant. This sensitivity owes to the
change in the independent variables attached to the determination of claims reserves.
Impact of change in claim reserves by + / - 10%
Surplus from insurance
operations before zakat

Shareholders’ equity

SR ’000

2015

2014

2015

2014

Medical

90,604

107,746

88,339

105,052

Motor

28,741

20,976

28,022

20,451

Property and casualty

16,101

17,504

15,698

17,067

135,446

146,226

132,059

142,570

(c) Market Risk and Asset Liability Management
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market commission rates or the market price
of securities or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand for securities and liquidity in the market.
The Board of directors of the Company ensure that the overall market risk exposure is maintained at prudent levels and is consistent with
the available capital. While the Board gives a strategic direction and goals, risk management function related to market risk is mainly
the responsibility of Investment Committee team. The team prepares forecast showing the effects of various possible changes in market
conditions related to risk exposures. This risk is being mitigated through the proper selection of securities. Company maintains diversified
portfolio and perform regular monitoring of developments in related markets. In addition, the key factors that affect stock and bond
market movements are monitored, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.
Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, commission rate risk and other price risk.
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Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.
Almost all instruments under bonds portfolio are denominated in currencies pegged to the US Dollar leaving minimal exposure to currency risk.
The geographical concentration of the Company’s investments is set out below:
Insurance Operations
SR ’000

2015

2014

2,833,941

2,772,061

378,815

58,163

Europe

-

19,388

Far East

-

14,454

Rest of the world

-

4,934

3,212,756

2,869,000

2015

2014

2,121,830

1,248,109

17,665

480,634

6,161

134,554

18,308

184,258

2,163,964

2,047,555

Local / Regional
United States of America

Shareholders Operations
SR ’000
Local / Regional
United States of America
Europe
Rest of the world

Management assesses that there is minimal risk of significant losses due to exchange rate fluctuations.
Commission Rate Risk
The Company invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to commission rate risk. Commission rate risk to the Company is the risk
of changes in commission rates reducing the overall return on its fixed commission rate bearing securities. The Commission rate risk is limited
by monitoring changes in commission rates in the currencies in which its cash and cash equivalents and investments are denominated.
An increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest yields would result in a change in the loss or gain for the year of SR 22.72 million
(2014: SR 14.89 million).
The commission and non-commission bearing investments of the Company and their maturities as at December 31 are as follows:
Insurance Operations
SR ’000

Less than 1 year

1 to 5 years

Over 5 years

Non- commission
bearing

Total

2015

376,299

582,916

273,874

1,979,667

3,212,756

2014

471,709

313,505

85,000

1,998,786

2,869,000

2015

650,000

246,636

142,134

1,125,194

2,163,964

2014

215,822

174,330

228,098

1,429,305

2,047,555

Shareholders
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Other Price Risk
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than those arising from commission rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual
financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The Company’s investments amounting to SR 3 billion (2014: SR 3.4 billion) are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainty
about the future value of invested securities. The Company limits this nature of market risk by diversifying its invested portfolio and by
actively monitoring the developments in markets.
The impact of hypothetical change of a 10% increase and 10% decrease in the market prices of investments on Company’s profit and equity
would be as follows:
Effect on income from
operations before zakat

Effect on
shareholders’ equity

Fair value

Price change

31 December 2015

+ / - 10%

305,166

-

297,537

31 December 2014

+ / - 10%

342,809

-

334,239

The sensitivity analysis presented is based upon the portfolio position as at 31 December 2015. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared
is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Company’s assets of future movements in the value of investments held by the Company.
(d) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.
Approximately 99% (2014: approximately 99%) of the Company’s underwriting activities are carried out in Saudi Arabia.
For all classes of financial assets held by the Company, other than those relating to reinsurance contracts as described in (b) above, the maximum
credit risk exposure to the Company is the carrying value as disclosed in the financial statements at the statement of financial position date.
The Company seeks to limit its credit risk with respect to customers by setting credit limits for individual customers and monitoring outstanding receivables.
The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position:
Assets - Insurance operations
SR ’000

2015

Bank / call and time deposits

761,037

699,814

1,943,579

1,529,113

652,686

870,214

1,495,909

1,200,247

423,083

375,106

Assets exposed to credit risk

5,276,294

4,674,494

Assets not exposed to credit risk

3,824,312

3,010,424

Total assets

9,100,606

7,684,918

2015

2014

Receivables, net
Available-for-sale investments
Reinsurers’ share of outstanding claims, net
Other assets

2014

Assets - Shareholders
SR ’000
Bank / call and time deposits
Available-for-sale investments
Accrued investment income

62,855

20,583

100,000

618,250

14,959

5,607

Statutory deposit

100,000

100,000

Assets exposed to credit risk

277,814

744,440

Assets not exposed to credit risk

2,190,692

1,509,148

Total assets

2,648,506

2,253,588
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Concentration of credit risk
Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose
aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure. The Company’s portfolio of financial
instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any
significant concentrations of credit risk.
(e) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet obligation and commitments associated
with financial liabilities. The Company has a proper cash management system, where daily cash collection and redemption is strictly
monitored and reconciled at the end of the day. At the time of investment, particular emphasis is focused on the selection of those
companies which are actively traded. The Company manages this risk by maintaining maturities of financial assets and financial liabilities
and investing a major portion of the Company’s assets in highly liquid financial assets.
The table below summarizes the maturities of the Company’s undiscounted contractual obligations.
Maturity Profile
Liabilities Insurance Operations
2015

2014

SR ’000

Less than
one year

No term

Total

Less than
one year

No term

Reinsurers’ balances payable

502,579

-

502,579

313,900

-

313,900

2,850,367

-

2,850,367

2,662,501

-

2,662,501

11,211

-

11,211

11,211

-

11,211

13,467

-

13,467

16,340

-

16,340

974,440

81,349

1,055,789

924,658

66,938

991,596

100,176

-

100,176

46,895

-

46,895

Financial liabilities – Insurance operations

4,452,240

81,349

4,533,589

3,975,505

66,938

4,042,443

Non-financial liabilities – Insurance operations

4,669,966

-

4,669,966

3,637,121

-

3,637,121

Total liabilities – Insurance operations

9,122,206

81,349

9,203,555

7,612,626

66,938

7,679,564

Outstanding claims
Reserve for discontinued operations
Reserve for Takaful activities
Claims payable, accrued expenses and
other liabilities
Surplus distribution payable

Total

Liabilities Shareholders
2015

2014

Less than
one year

No term

Less than
one year

No term

Dividends payable

5,643

-

5,643

5,014

-

5,014

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

1,689

-

1,689

1,434

-

1,434

Financial liabilities – Shareholders

7,332

-

7,332

6,448

-

6,448

Non-financial liabilities – Shareholders

152,106

-

152,106

170,765

-

170,765

Total liabilities – Shareholders

159,438

-

159,438

177,213

-

177,213

SR ’000

Total

Total
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To manage the liquidity risk arising from financial liabilities mentioned above, the Company holds liquid assets comprising cash and cash
equivalents and investment securities for which there is an active market. These assets can be readily sold to meet liquidity requirements.
(f) Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the processes, technology and
infrastructure supporting the Company’s operations either internally within the Company or externally at the Company’s service providers,
and from external factors other than credit, market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and
generally accepted standards of investment management behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the Company’s activities.
The Company’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance limiting of financial losses and damage to its reputation with
achieving its investment objective of generating returns for investors. The primary responsibility for the development and implementation
of controls over operational risk rests with the Board of Directors. This responsibility encompasses the controls in the following areas:
••

Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties between various functions, roles and responsibilities;

••

Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

••

Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements;

••

Documentation of controls and procedures;

••

Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and procedures to address the
risks identified;

••

Ethical and business standards;

••

Risk mitigation, including insurance where it is effective.

Senior Management ensures that the Company’s staff has adequate training and experience and fosters effective communication related
to operational risk management.
29. Capital Management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that it is able to continue as going concern and comply with the regulators’ capital
requirements of the markets in which the Company operates while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of
the debt and equity balance. The capital structure of the Company consists of equity attributable to equity holders comprising paid share
capital, reserves and retained earnings.
As per guidelines laid out by SAMA in Article 66 table 3 and 4 of the Implementing Insurance Regulations detailing the solvency margin
required to be maintained, the Company shall maintain solvency margin equivalent to the highest of the following three methods as per
SAMA Implementing Regulations:
••

Minimum Capital Requirement of SR 200 million

••

Premium Solvency Margin

••

Claims Solvency Margin

30. Realized gains on financial assets, net
Insurance Operations
SR’000

2015

2014

76,521

18,963

Realized gains on available-for-sale financial assets
- Equity securities
Impairment on financial assets
- Equity securities

(17,696)

-

58,825

18,963

- Equity securities

125,517

140,831

- Debt securities

46,373

1,451

Realized gain on financial assets, net

SHAREHOLDERS
Realized gains on available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment on financial assets
- Equity securities
Realized gain on financial assets, net

(36,033)

-

135,857

142,282
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31. Credit quality of investments
Insurance Operations
SR’000

2015

Rating

Investments

2014

Rating

88,339

Local / Regional Money Market Investments

1,977,151

NA

Local / Regional Fixed Income Investments

273,874

A

409,127

A

Local / Regional Equity Investments

582,916

NA

476,761

NA

International / Global Fixed Income Investments

378,815

NA

-

NA

-

NA

96,939

NA

International / Global Equity Investments
Total

3,212,756

1,886,173

NA

2,869,000

- Shareholders
Investments
Local / Regional Money Market Investments

1,775,194

NA

313,312

NA

Local / Regional Fixed Income Investments

100,000

A

633,110

A

Local / Regional Equity Investments

246,636

NA

290,130

NA

-

NA

485,867

NA

42,134

NA

325,136

NA

International / Global Fixed Income Investments
International / Global Equity Investments
Total

2,163,964

2,047,555

32. Contingent Liabilities
a) As at December 31, 2015, the Company was contingently liable for letters of credit and guarantees issued on its behalf by the banks,
amounting to SR 163 million (December 31, 2014 - SR 160 million) occurring in the normal course of business.
b) The Company, in common with significant majority of insurers, is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. The
Company based on independent legal advice, does not believe that the outcome of these court cases will have a material impact on the
Company’s income or financial condition.
33. Reclassification
Comparative figures for certain account heads have been re-classified to confirm to the current year’s presentation. The details of the
reclassification are:
Component

From

To

SR’000

Statement of income - insurance
operations and accumulated surplus

Gross claims paid

Operating and selling expenses

97,363

34. Approval of the financial statements
The financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors on Rabi-Al-Thani 28, 1437H, corresponding to February 7, 2016G.
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